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Entry	1	School	Information
Last	updated:	07/23/2016

Please	be	advised	that	you	will	need	to	complete	this	cover	page	(including	signatures)	before	all	of
the	other	tasks	assigned	to	you	by	your	authorizer	are	visible	on	your	task	page.	While	completing
this	task,	please	ensure	that	you	select	the	correct	authorizer	or	you	may	not	be	assigned	the
correct	tasks.
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a.	SCHOOL	NAME	AND	BEDS#

(Select	name	from	the	drop	down	menu)

UTICA	ACADEMY	OF	SCIENCE	CS	(REGENTS)	412300861058

b.	CHARTER	AUTHORIZER

(For	technical	reasons,	please	re-select	authorizer	name	from	the	drop	down	menu).

Regents-Authorized	Charter	School

c.	DISTRICT	/	CSD	OF	LOCATION

Utica

d1.	SCHOOL	INFORMATION

PRIMARY	ADDRESS PHONE	NUMBER FAX	NUMBER EMAIL	ADDRESS

121	Lincoln	Ave.
Utica,
NY	13502

315-266-1072 315-266-1073 info@uascs.org

d2.	PHONE	CONTACT	NUMBER	FOR	AFTER	HOURS	EMERGENCIES

Contact	Name Mustafa	Ersoy

Title Director

mailto:info@uascs.org
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Emergency	Phone	Number	(###-###-####)

e.	SCHOOL	WEB	ADDRESS	(URL)

www.uascs.org

f.	DATE	OF	INITIAL	CHARTER

11/2012

g.	DATE	FIRST	OPENED	FOR	INSTRUCTION

09/2013

h1.	APPROVED	SCHOOL	MISSION	(Regents,	NYCDOE,	and	Buffalo	BOE	authorized
schools	only)

MISSION	STATEMENT

Utica	Academy	of	Science	Charter	School	(UASCS)	will	provide	support,	challenges,	and
opportunities	for	its	students,	and	it	will	instill	the	necessary	skills	and	knowledge	in	math,
science,	and	technology	to	empower	students	through	high	intellectual	standards,	preparing	them
for	college,	career,	and	citizenship.	The	school	seeks	to	graduate	students	who	can	think	critically
and	creatively,	who	are	committed	to	a	lifetime	of	learning	and	civic	involvement,	and	who	are
conscious	of	local,	global,	and	environmental	issues.

h2.	KEY	DESIGN	ELEMENTS	(Regents,	NYCDOE,	and	Buffalo	BOE	authorized
schools	only)
KEY	DESIGN	ELEMENTS	(Brief	description)

Variable	1 Replicating	the	Success:	
The	Utica	Academy	of	Science	Charter	School
(UASCS)	will	be	a	replication	of	Syracuse	Academy	of
Science	Charter	School,	whose	board	members	will
be	the	founding	board	members	of	UASCS.	The
SASCS	has	been	a	NYSED-authorized	charter	school
since	2003	and	newly	renewed	for	its	third,	five-year
term.	SASCS	is	accredited	by	Middle	States
Association,	a	nationally	acclaimed	K-16

http://www.uascs.org/
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accreditation	organization.	It	has	successfully
surpassed	its	local	district	in	all	state	exams	and	has
a	current	cohort	graduation	rate	of	92.5%.

Variable	2 Academic	Program	Partner:	
As	an	academic	program	partner,	the	SASCS	will
serve	as	a	model	for	the	UASCS.	We	have	the	ability
to	readily	replicate	the	SASCS's	parent/guardian
inclusion	and	communication	programs	and	policies,
its	expansive	scheduling	approach	to	core
curriculum	remediation	and	improved	performance,
its	embedded	tutoring	program,	and	its	extensive
supplemental	educational	activities	through
academic	clubs	and	competitions.

Variable	3 College	Preparation:	
The	importance	of	college	readiness	will	be
paramount	at	the	UASCS.	The	charter	school	will
create	a	college-bound	culture	and	will	provide	an
extensive	and	targeted	curriculum	aimed	at	college
preparation.	Enrolling	all	graduates	to	a	college	will
be	the	most	important	feature	and	focus	of	the
proposed	charter	school's	educational	model.	The
school	will	organize	college	fairs,	college	visits,
summer	residential	college	programs,	after-school
and	Saturday	SAT	programs,	and	more,	which	have
been	proven	to	be	successful	at	the	SASCS,	to	make
sure	that	every	student	has	an	opportunity	to	attend
college.

Variable	4 Focus	on	STEM:	
The	curriculum	will	focus	on	science,	technology,
engineering	and	math	(STEM)	which	provides	the
necessary	foundation	for	college	entrance	and
careers	in	technical	fields.	STEM	education	is	a	high
national	priority	because	of	lack	of	skilled	workers	in
these	fields.

Variable	5 Glocal	Education:	
The	school	will	teach	thinking	globally	and	acting
locally.	The	school	will	combine	extensive	local	and
international	interactions	through	local,	national,	and
international	field	trips,	and	through	visits	by	local,
national	and	international	leaders	and	members	of
institutions.	The	school	will	actively	recruit	a	diverse
student	population	(e.g.	ELL,	free	and	reduced	lunch,
etc)	in	order	to	create	a	small-world	community
within	the	school	to	promote	its	glocal	educational
mission.	In	order	to	achieve	high	community
involvement,	the	school	will	invite	the	community
leaders	to	participate	in	education	by	sharing	their
experiences	and	challenges	with	our	students.

Variable	6 Youth	Leadership	Program:
The	school	will	incorporate	character	education,
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teaching	universally	recognized	values	such	as
honesty,	stewardship,	kindness,	generosity,	courage,
freedom,	justice,	equality.	As	a	complementary
program	to	the	character	education,	adventure-
based	education	will	provide	engagement,
challenge,	and	risk	management	in	a	group	setting
to	enhance	interpersonal	growth,	leadership
abilities,	self-concept,	academic	achievement,	and
personality.	It	will	be	offered	as	extracurricular
activities	on	a	monthly	basis	and	it	will	last	three	to
four	hours.	In	addition,	UASCS	will	have	civic
involvement	program	which	includes	inviting	local
leaders	from	political,	service,	business	and
academia	as	speakers	or	judges	of	student	projects
and	performances,	participating	in	job	shadowing
opportunities,	and	visiting	workplaces.	The
community	involvement	will	directly	carry	the	school
experience	into	the	real	world,	throughout	higher
education,	work,	family,	and	community	and	civic
affairs.	Graduates	completing	four	years	of	high
school	at	UASCS	will	be	have	completed	100	hours
of	community	service	prior	to	graduation.

Variable	7 Environmental	Education:	
Environmental	education	is	a	learning	process	that
increases	people's	knowledge	and	awareness	of	the
environment	and	associated	challenges;	develops
the	necessary	skills	and	expertise	to	address	the
challenges;	and	fosters	attitudes,	motivation,	and
the	commitment	to	make	informed	decisions	and
take	responsible	action	(UNESCO,	Tbilisi
Declaration).	The	school's	environmental	education
will	promote	awareness	of	the	environmental
challenges	and	quality,	and	will	include	environment
related	programs	for	practicing	acquired	knowledge.

Variable	8 Tutoring	and	After-School	Programs:	
These	programs	will	increase	the	performance	of
low-achieving	students	and	will	prepare	high-
achieving	students	for	regional,	national,	and
international	science	and	engineering	fairs.	The
school	will	have	some	athletics	program,	Saturday
school	for	interested	students,	and	clubs	mainly
organized	by	students	but	guided	by	teachers.	The
school	will	include	a	master	schedule	that	includes
daily	remedial	instruction	or	academic	enrichment
for	all	students,	including	at-risk	students,	during	the
regular	school	day,	Title	1	tutoring	for	core	academic
subjects	(including	push-in	and	pull-out	attention
given	to	students	at	risk),	a	monthly	advisory
program	incorporated	into	the	regular	school
schedule,	four	days	each	week	of	tutoring	available
after	school,	Saturday	Academy,	Saturday	IVY
League,	Saturday	SAT	Classes,	MathCounts,	Science
Olympiad,	and	the	SUNY	Oswego	Summer	Science
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Immersion	program.

Variable	9 Parental	Involvement	and	Home	Visits:	
Students'	success	and	performance	are	affected	not
only	by	teachers,	but	also	by	their	parents	and
environment.	Therefore,	parental	involvement	is	a
significant	part	of	our	school's	strategic	goals.	The
school's	teachers	will	perform	home	visits	to
understand	the	students'	problems	and	abilities	and
to	create	a	better	triad	of	parent-student-teacher
relationships.

Variable	10 Performance	Based	Accountability:	
Student	progress	and	teacher	effectiveness	will	be
measured	quarterly	through	data	collected	and
tracked	by	multiple	assessment	instruments,
including	NWEA	MAP	Testing,	Benchmark	Exams
utilizing	ExamView	Software,	and	full-length	practice
tests	for	state	assessments	such	as	the	Regents
exams.	Student	performance	will	be	documented
and	reviewed	by	teachers	and	the	Academic	Dean	to
create	action	plans	to	improve	individual	student
achievement.	There	will	be	an	extensive	teacher
observation	and	enrichment	program,	in	which	each
and	every	teacher	is	visited	biweekly	and	given
feedback,	with	resources	tailored	for	their	individual
needs	using	the	Observation	360	program.	In
addition,	the	school	will	use	a	comprehensive
electronic	dashboard	system	based	on	its
performance	metrics	to	more	effectively	oversee
school	operations.

i.	TOTAL	ENROLLMENT	ON	JUNE	30,	2016

334

j.	GRADES	SERVED	IN	SCHOOL	YEAR	2015-16
Check	all	that	apply

Grades	Served 6,	7,	8,	9,	10,	11,	12

k1.	DOES	THE	SCHOOL	CONTRACT	WITH	A	CHARTER	OR	EDUCATIONAL
MANAGEMENT	ORGANIZATION?
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No

Page	2

l1.	FACILITIES
Does	the	school	maintain	or	operate	multiple	sites?

Yes,	2	sites

l2.	SCHOOL	SITES
Please	list	the	sites	where	the	school	will	operate	for	the	upcoming	school	year.

Physical
Address

Phone
Number

District/CSD Grades
Served	at
Site

School	at	Full
Capacity	at
Site

Facilities
Agreement

Site	1	(same
as	primary
site)

1214	Lincoln
Ave.
Utica,	NY
13502

315-266-
1072

UTICA	CITY
SD 6,7 Yes Rent/Lease

Site	2
160	School
Lane,
Frankfort,	NY
13340

(315)	574-
3000

UTICA	CITY
SD 8-11 Yes Rent/Lease

Site	3

l3.	Please	provide	the	contact	information	for	Site	2.

Name Work	Phone Alternate	Phone Email	Address

School	Leader Mustafa	Ersoy

Operational	Leader Nick	Bilge

Compliance
Contact Tolga	Hayali

Complaint	Contact Tolga	Hayali

m1.	Is	the	school	or	are	the	school	sites	co-located?

No
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Page	3

n1.	Were	there	any	revisions	to	the	school’s	charter	during	the	2015-16	school
year?	(Please	include	approved	or	pending	material	and	non-material	charter
revisions).

No

o.	Name	and	Position	of	Individual(s)	Who	Completed	the	2015-16	Annual	Report.

Mustafa	Ersoy

p.	Our	signatures	below	attest	that	all	of	the	information	contained	herein	is
truthful	and	accurate	and	that	this	charter	school	is	in	compliance	with	all
aspects	of	its	charter,	and	with	all	pertinent	Federal,	State,	and	local	laws,
regulations,	and	rules.	We	understand	that	if	any	information	in	any	part	of	this
report	is	found	to	have	been	deliberately	misrepresented,	that	will	constitute
grounds	for	the	revocation	of	our	charter.	Check	YES	if	you	agree	and	then	use
the	mouse	on	your	PC	or	the	stylist	on	your	mobile	device	to	sign	your	name).

Responses	Selected:

Yes

Signature,	Head	of	Charter	School

Signature,	President	of	the	Board	of	Trustees
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Date

(No	response)

Thank	you.
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Entry	2	Link
Last	updated:	07/23/2016

Page	1

1.	NEW	YORK	STATE	REPORT	CARD

Provide	a	direct	URL	or	web	link	to	the	most	recent	New	York	State	School	Report
Card	for	the	charter	school	(See	https://reportcards.nysed.gov/).

(Charter	schools	completing	year	one	will	not	yet	have	a	School	Report	Card	or	link	to	one.	Please
type	"URL	is	not	available"	in	the	space	provided).

https://data.nysed.gov/reportcard.php?year=2015&instid=800000075839

https://data.nysed.gov/reportcard.php?year=2015&instid=800000075839
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Entry	3	Progress
Created:	07/23/2016
Last	updated:	08/01/2016

Page	1

PROGRESS	TOWARD	CHARTER	GOALS

The	following	tables	reflect	formatting	in	the	online	portal	required	for	Board	of	Regents-authorized
charter	schools	and	NYCDOE-authorized	charter	schools	only.	Schools	should	list	Progress	Toward
Charter	Goals	by	August	1,	2016.	If	the	goals	are	based	on	student	performance	data	that	the
school	will	not	have	access	to	before	August	1,	2016		(e.g.,	the	NYS	Assessment	results),	explain
this	in	the	"2015-2016	Progress	Toward	Attainment	of	Goal"	column.	The	information	can	be
updated	when	available.	Please	complete	and	submit	no	later	than	November	1,	2016.

1.	ACADEMIC	STUDENT	PERFORMANCE	GOALS

2015-16	Progress	Toward	Attainment	of	Academic	Goals

Academic	Student
Performance	Goal

Measure	Used	to
Evaluate	Progress
Toward	Attainment
of	Goal

Goal	-	Met,	Partially
Met,	or	Not	Met

If	Not	Met,	Describe
Efforts	School	Will
Take

Academic	Goal	1
Yearly	Progress	on
7th	and	8th	Grade
Math	and	ELA

New	York	State
Intermediate
Assessments

Not	met

•	Hire	three	new
ELA	and	Math
support	teachers	in
6-8	grades.
•	Initiate	School
wide	literacy
program.
•	Hire	three
instructional	coach
with	literacy	and
ELA	background.	
•	Set	up	weekly
teacher	data
workshop.
•	Schedule	weekly
professional
development/PLC
sessions.	
•	Set	up	weekly
meetings	with	Math
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and	ELA	teachers
led	by	school
leaders.
•	Create	data
coordinator
position	to	support
teachers	with
available	data	and
RTI	process.	
•	Initiate	school
wide	PBIS	program.

•	STAR	-	To	improve
student	preparation
for	New	York	State
assessments	and
teacher	analysis	of
student	readiness,
UASCS	continued
computerized	STAR
tests,	benchmark
testing	for	all
students	in	grades
6-11	in	2015-2016.
Star	test	given
monthly	and	allow
stakeholders	to
monitor	student’s
performance	and
progress	each
month.	
•	Local	Benchmark
Assessment	-	Each
core	class
instructor	(for	all
ELA	courses,	math
for	grades	6-8,
Algebra,	Biology,
Earth	Science,
Chemistry,	and
Global	Studies)
developed
benchmark	tests
prepared	by
teachers	or
collaboratively
developed	with	SAS
and	UAS.	The
benchmark	tests
assess	units	taught
during	the	quarter,
and	the	questions
reflect	which
standard	is	being
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Academic	Goal	2

Use	local
assessment	to
progress	student
performance
through	data
analysis

Monthly	STAR	Tests,
Benchmark	and
teacher	made
formative	and
summative
assessments

Met

assessed	for	each
question.	In
addition,	full-length
practice	exams	are
given	and	analyzed
to	ascertain	each
students’	readiness
and	progress
toward	success	on
the	state	exams.
Instructional
coaches	provided
reports	to	teachers
and	met	with	them
to	develop	action
plans	and	then
check	for	alignment
between	action
plans	and	lesson
plans.	Based	on	the
data	obtained	from
these	assessments,
•	Intervention:
UASCS	began	“from
the	ground	up”
method	of
improving
performance	by
several	measures,
such	as	assisting
grade	6-8	identified
at	risk	students
through	push-in,
pull-out	and	after
school	tutoring.	The
analysis	of	the	full-
length	practice
exams	provides
information	about
student	progress
within	a	year	as
well	as	their
possible	success	at
SED	and	Regents
Exams.	UAS	also
use	the	following
interventions
throughout	the
year.
•	Saturday	school,
Spring	and	winter
camp,	summer
bridge	program	for
new	comers	and
regular	summer
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school	for	returning
students

Academic	Goal	3 Maintain	high
attendance	rate School	report	card Met

•	UASCS
consistently	check
and	makes	daily
live	calls	for
students	who	are
tardy	or	late.	The
yearly	attendance
rate	is	consistently
high	which	is	at	or
above	95%.

Academic	Goal	4

Increase	parent
involvement	and
awareness	of
academic	progress

Survey,	progress
report	cards	and
database

Met

•	UASCS	provides
surveys,	monthly
parent	involvement
meetings	and
periodic	school
events	for	parent	to
get	involved	in	the
school	and	their
child’s	learning.
UASCS	continued
the	frequency	of	its
student	academic
progress	reporting
in	2015-2016.
Every	five-week,
progress	reports
cards	are	sent
home,	in	addition
to	end-of	quarter
reports	cards
(typically	resulting
in	4	reports	home
per	quarter),	which
provides	more
frequent
information	to
parents;
particularly	those
who	do	not	have
Internet	access,	or
are	uncomfortable
with	accessing	the
database	for
information.	School
counselors	and
curriculum
coordinators	also
regularly	check	for
timeliness	of	data
entry	(grades)	in
database	so	that
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information
reported	to	parents
is	current	and
accurate.

Academic	Goal	5

Expose	all	students
to	collegiate
opportunities	for
college	prep
mission

College	connection
programs	and
college	guidance
services

Met

•	UASCS	offers
multiple	college
connection
opportunities	and
college	guidance
services	including
offering	MVCC
College	connection
and	bridge
programs,	SUNY
ESF	courses,	SAT
courses	as	well	as
college	
•	One	of	the	key
components	of
college	guidance	at
UASCS	is	to	expose
students	to	college
environment
through	various
college	visits	and
guest	speakers.
College	visits,
hosting	individual
college
representatives	and
guest	speakers
help	our	students
expand	their
knowledge	about
necessary	skills,
requirements	and
available	programs
at	local,	regional
and	national
colleges.	
•	UASCS'
counseling
department	uses
paperless	college
application	tools;
Naviance	and
Common	App.	for
college
applications.	As	of
summer	of	2016,
eligible	UASCS	high
school	will	be	able
to	take	college
courses	from	MVCC
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and	SUNY	ESF
campuses.	
•	Students	will	also
take	advantage	of
local	area	and
SUNY	Oswego
summer	internship
opportunities	based
on	their	interest.
The	following
services	are	the
highlights	of
UASCS’	College
Guidance	Services:
•	Individual	support
for	college	and
career	choice	
•	Online	college
application	tools:
Naviance	and
Common	App.	
•	Local,	regional
and	national
college	visits	
•	MVCC	and	SUNY
ESF	College
courses	
•	SAT/ACT	courses,
prep	sessions	
•	SUNY	Oswego
Summer	Internship

•	UASCS	has	a
major	role	to	play
in	building	an
educational
pipeline	in	STEM.
By	creating	a
rigorous	STEM
program	with
curricular	and	extra
curricular
opportunities,	our
goal	is	to
collaborate	with
area	colleges,
STEM	related
business	and	local
community	to
encourage	our
students	to
explore,	involve
and	pursue	a
career	in	such
fields.	Such	mission
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Academic	Goal	6
Provide	STEM
opportunities	for	all
students

STEM	events
transcripts Met

supports	our	local
colleges	and
businesses	meet
their	need	on
highly	qualified
college	student
body	and	work
force	in	the	STEM
fields
•	Robotics	-The
Robotics	Program
at	UASCS	is
designed	to
prepare	our
students	to
compete	in	the
ever-expanding
fields	of	science
and	technology,
which	are
becoming
increasingly
embedded	into	our
everyday	lives.	Our
Robotics	Program	is
offered	as
afterschool
program	in	both
middle	and	high
school	buildings.	It
addresses	key
concepts	of	the
core	subjects,
including	science,
technology,
mathematics	and
ELA	as	well	as
research,	team-
building	and	time
management.
•	Math-Counts	Our
Math	Olympiad
team	worked
extremely	hard	on
weekdays	and
Saturdays	to
represent	UASCS	at
the	competition.
The	UASCS
Community	is
proud	of	our
dedicated	coach
and	the	Math
counts	team.	The
UASCS	Math
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Olympiad	Team
Member	Everett
Fischer	won	the
2nd	place	on
Countdown	Part
and	the	team	won
3rd	Place	and
qualified	for	the
state	finals.
•	Annual	UASCS
Science	Fair	UASCS
Annual	Science	Fair
is	a	great
opportunity	for	our
students	to
research,
understand,	apply
and	communicate
scientific	facts	of
their	interest.	All
students	(grades	6-
11)	are	required	to
complete	a	science
project	and
compete	to	be
qualified	for	the
Science	Fair
showcase	and
Regional	Utica
College	Science
Fair.	The	event	also
brings	our	local
colleges	and
business	together
to	support	and
celebrate	our
students’	hardwork.
•	Annual	Utica
College	Science
Fair	Utica	College
Regional	Science
Fair	is	an	annual
event	that	takes
place	each	year	in
March.	There	were
twelve	schools
participated	from
the	region.	In	2014,
Utica	Academy	of
Science	was	the
only	senior	level
school	from	Utica
City	area.	UAS
Scholars	have
worked	hard	and
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recognized	by	so
many	medals,
certificates	and
cash	awards	for
their	projects.

Academic	Goal	7

Academic	Goal	8

2.	Do	have	more	academic	goals	to	add?

No

3.	Do	have	more	academic	goals	to	add?

No

Page	2

4.	ORGANIZATIONAL	GOALS

2015-16	Progress	Toward	Attainment	of	Organizational	Goals

Organizational	Goal Measure	Used	to
Evaluate	Progress

Goal	-	Met,	Partially
Met,	or	Not	Met

If	Not	Met,	Describe
Efforts	School	Will
Take

Org	Goal	1

Org	Goal	2

Org	Goal	3

Org	Goal	4

Org	Goal	5

5.	Do	you	have	more	organizational	goals	to	add?

(No	response)
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2015-16	Progress	Toward	Attainment	of	Organizational	Goals

Organizational	Goal Measure	Used	to
Evaluate	Progress

Goal	-	Met,	Partially
Met,	or	Not	Met

If	Not	Met,	Describe
Efforts	School	Will
Take

Org	Goal	6

Org	Goal	7

Org	Goal	8

Org	Goal	9

Org	Goal	10

Org	Goal	11

Org	Goal	12

Org	Goal	13

Org	Goal	14

Org	Goal	15

6.	FINANCIAL	GOALS

2015-16	Progress	Toward	Attainment	of	Financial	Goals

Financial	Goals Measure	Used	to
Evaluate	Progress

Goal	-	Met,	Partially
Met,	or	Not	Met

If	Not	Met,	Describe
Efforts	School	Will
Take

Financial	Goal	1

to	have
contingency
reserve	funds
higher	than	2%	of
the	annual	budget

Surplus	show	in	the
financial
statements

Met

Financial	Goal	2

to	have	no
identified	financial
deficiencies	by
annual
audits.

No	findings	in	14-
15	audit Met

Financial	Goal	3

Financial	Goal	4

Financial	Goal	5
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Entry	4	Expenditures	per	Child
Last	updated:	07/23/2016

Page	1

Financial	Information	
This	information	is	required	of	ALL	charter	schools.	Provide	the	following	measures	of	fiscal
performance	of	the	charter	school	in	Appendix	B	(Total	Expenditures	and	Administrative
Expenditures	Per	Child):
	

1.	Total	Expenditures	Per	Child
To	calculate	‘Total	Expenditures	per	Child’	take	total	expenditures	(from	the	unaudited	2015-16
Schedule	of	Functional	Expenses)	and	divide	by	the	year	end	FTE	student	enrollment.	(Integers	Only.
No	dollar	signs	or	commas).

Note:		The	information	on	the	Schedule	of	Functional	Expenses	on	pages	41–43	of	the
Audit	Guide	can	help	schools	locate	the	amounts	to	use	in	the	two	per	pupil	calculations:
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html
	

Line	1:	Total	Expenditures 3495211

Line	2:	Year	End	FTE	student	enrollment 340

Line	3:	Divide	Line	1	by	Line	2 10280

2.	Administrative	Expenditures	per	Child

To	calculate	‘Administrative	Expenditures	per	Child'	To	calculate	“Administrative	Expenditures
per	Child”	first	add	together	the	following:

1.	Take	the	relevant	portion	from	the	‘personnel	services	cost’	row	and	the	‘management	and
general’	column	(from	the	unaudited	2015-16	Schedule	of	Functional	Expenses)

2.	Any	contracted	administrative/management	fee	paid	to	other	organizations	or	corporations

3.	Take	the	total	from	above	and	divide	it	by	the	year-end	FTE	enrollment.		The	relevant	portion	that
must	be	included	in	this	calculation	is	defined	as	follows:

http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html
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Administrative	Expenditures:		Administration	and	management	of	the	charter	school	includes	the
activities	and	personnel	of	the	offices	of	the	chief	school	officer,	the	finance	or	business	offices,
school	operations	personnel,	data	management	and	reporting,	human	resources,	technology,	etc.	It
also	includes	those	administrative	and	management	services	provided	by	other	organizations	or
corporations	on	behalf	of	the	charter	school	for	which	the	charter	school	pays	a	fee	or	other
compensation.		Do	not	include	the	FTE	of	personnel	whose	role	is	to	directly	support	the
instructional	program.		

Notes:		
The	information	on	the	Schedule	of	Functional	Expenses	on	pages	41–43	of	the	Audit
Guide	can	help	schools	locate	the	amounts	to	use	in	the	two	per	pupil	calculations:
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html.	
Employee	benefit	costs	or	expenditures	should	not	be	reported	in	the	above
calculations.

Line	1:	Relevant	Personnel	Services	Cost	(Row) 350350

Line	2:	Management	and	General	Cost	(Column) 91236

Line	3:	Sum	of	Line	1	and	Line	2 441586

Line	5:	Divide	Line	3	by	the	Year	End	FTE	student
enrollment 1299

Thank	you.

http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html


2015

 Unrestricted 

 Temporarily 

Restricted  Total  Total 

REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT

State & Local Operating Revenue  $              3,272,488  $                             -  $              3,272,488  $              2,277,999 

Federal - Title and IDEA 136,550                   -                                                    136,550 258,659                   

Federal - Other 113,606                   -                                                    113,606 75,833                      

State and City Grants 35,304                      -                                                      35,304 2,084                        

Contributions and private grants -                                -                                                                - 30,338                      

After school revenue -                                -                                                                - -                                

Other 70,950                      -                                                      70,950 15,937                      

Food Service/Child Nutrition Program                         7,800                                 -                         7,800                         6,436 

TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT  $              3,636,698  $                             -  $              3,636,698  $              2,667,286 

Program Services

Regular Education  $              2,563,173  $                             -  $              2,563,173  $              1,625,055 

Special Education 144,994                   -                                                    144,994 103,070                   

Other Programs                     205,510                                 -                     205,510                     127,881 

Total Program Services  $              2,913,677  $                             -  $              2,913,677  $              1,856,006  
Supporting Services

Management and general  $                 581,534  $                             -  $                 581,534  $                 645,469 

Fundraising                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 - 

 $              3,495,211  $                             -  $              3,495,211  $              2,501,475 

 $                 141,487  $                             -  $                 141,487  $                 165,811 

Contributions

 Foundations  $                             -  $                             -  $                             -  $                             - 

 Individuals                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 - 

 Corporations                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 - 

Fundraising                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 - 

Interest income                            460                                 -                            460                                 - 

Miscellaneous income                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 - 

Net assets released from restriction                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 - 

 $                        460  $                             -  $                        460  $                             - 

 $                 141,947  $                             -  $                 141,947  $                 165,811 

NET ASSETS BEGINNING OF YEAR  $                 491,127  $                             -  $                 491,127  $                 325,316 

PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 - 

 $                 633,074  $                             -  $                 633,074  $                 491,127 

2016

 FILL IN GRAY CELLS 

Utica Academy of Science Charter School
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2016

 NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR 

 EXPENSES 

 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

 SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

 TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 

 CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 
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Entry	6a	Audited	Statements
Created:	10/31/2016
Last	updated:	11/01/2016

Regents,	NYCDOE	and	Buffalo	BOE	authorized	schools	should	enter	the	financial	contact	information
requested	and	upload	the	independent	auditor's	report	and	internal	controls	reports	as	one
combined	file.

Page	1

School	Based	Fiscal	Contact	Information

School	Based	Fiscal
Contact	Name

School	Based	Fiscal
Contact	Email

School	Based	Fiscal
Contact	Phone

Yusuf	Akyar

Audit	Firm	Contact	Information

School	Audit
Contact	Name

School	Audit
Contact	Email

School	Audit
Contact	Phone

Years	Working	With
This	Audit	Firm

Jeanne	Beutner 3

If	Applicable:

Outsourced
Financial
Services	Firm
Name

Outsourced
Financial
Services
Contact

Outsourced
Financial
Services	Email

Outsourced
Financial
Services	Phone

Years	Working
With	This	Firm

Please	upload	as	one	combined	file:

a.	the	independent	auditor's	report	on	financial	statements	and	notes;	and	
b.	reports	on	internal	controls	over	financial	reporting	and	compliance

https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/media/assets/survey-uploads/84001/7103508-
F7wWrRhhE3/Utica%20Academy%20of%20Science%20Financial%20Statement%202016-final.pdf

https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/media/assets/survey-uploads/84001/7103508-F7wWrRhhE3/Utica%20Academy%20of%20Science%20Financial%20Statement%202016-final.pdf
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Entry	6b	Additional	Financial	Docs
Created:	10/31/2016
Last	updated:	11/01/2016

The	additional	items	listed	below	should	be	uploaded	if	applicable.	Please	explain	the	reason(s)	if
the	items	are	not	included.	Examples	might	include:	a	written	management	letter	was	not	issued;
the	school	did	not	expend	federal	funds	in	excess	of	the	Single	Audit	Threshold	of	$750,000;	the
corrective	action	plan	will	be	submitted	by	the	following	date	(should	be	no	later	than	30	days	from
the	submission	of	the	report);	etc.

Page	1

1.	Management	Letter

https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/media/assets/survey-uploads/84010/7103600-
8mMIunnVv3/Utica%20Academy%20of%20Science%20Req%20Comm%20letter%202016%20-
final.pdf

Explanation	for	not	uploading	the	Management	Letter.

(No	response)

2.	Form	990

(No	response)

Explanation	for	not	uploading	the	Form	990.

990	is	not	approved	by	the	BOT	since	the	deadline	is	November	15th.	We	can	submit	it	when	it	is
approved	on	our	Nov.	8	meeting.

3.	Federal	Single	Audit

Note:	A	copy	of	the	Federal	Single	Audit	must	be	filed	with	the	Federal	Audit	Clearinghouse.		Please
refer	to	OMB	Uniform	Guidelines	for	the	federal	filing	requirements.

(No	response)

https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/media/assets/survey-uploads/84010/7103600-8mMIunnVv3/Utica%20Academy%20of%20Science%20Req%20Comm%20letter%202016%20-final.pdf
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Explanation	for	not	uploading	the	Federal	Single	Audit.

The	school	did	not	expend	federal	funds	in	excess	of	the	Single	Audit	Threshold	of	$750,000

4.	CSP	Agreed	Upon	Procedure	Report

(No	response)

Explanation	for	not	uploading	the	procedure	report.

NA

5.	Evidence	of	Required	Escrow	Account

https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/media/assets/survey-uploads/84010/7103600-
pN6H0Nalce/Scanned%20from%20a%20DO%20Printer%20(60).pdf

Explanation	for	not	uploading	the	Escrow	evidence.

(No	response)

6.	Corrective	Action	Plan

A	Corrective	Action	Plan	for	Audit	Findings	and	Management	Letter	Recommendations,	which
must	include:

a.	The	person	responsible
b.	The	date	action	was	taken,	or	will	be	taken
c.	Description	of	the	action	taken
d.	Evidence	of	implementation	(if	available)

(No	response)

Explanation	for	not	uploading	the	Corrective	Action	Plan.

NA

https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/media/assets/survey-uploads/84010/7103600-pN6H0Nalce/Scanned%20from%20a%20DO%20Printer%20(60).pdf
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Trustees
Utica Academy of Science Charter School
Syracuse, New York

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Utica Academy of Science Charter School (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the balance sheets as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 and the related
statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended, the related statement of functional
expenses for the year ended June 30, 2016 and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

-1-



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Utica Academy of Science Charter School as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 and its
cash flows and changes in net assets for the years then ended, and functional expenses for the year
ended June 30, 2016 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Utica Academy of Science Charter School's statement of functional
expenses for the year ended June 30, 2015, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those
audited financial statements in our report dated October 13, 2015. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015 is consistent, in
all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October 11,
2016 on our consideration of Utica Academy of Science Charter School's internal control over
financial reporting, and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Utica Academy of Science Charter School’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Heveron & Company CPAs

Rochester, New York
October 11, 2016
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UTICA ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL

BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, 2016 and 2015

ASSETS

2016 2015

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 442,086 $ 732,026

Accounts Receivable 6,420 5,969

Grants Receivable 21,553 90,039

Inventory 21,959 17,931

Prepaid Expenses 8,084 30,752

Total Current Assets 500,102 876,717

Property and Equipment

Leasehold Improvements 112,748 21,832

Furniture,Fixtures and Equipment 116,766 26,606

Computer Software and Hardware 179,492 64,756

Vehicles 27,312 27,312

Less: Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization (109,027) (31,296)

Net Property and Equipment 327,291 109,210

Other Assets

Security Deposits 48,295 48,295

TOTAL ASSETS $ 875,688 $1,034,222
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2016 2015

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable $ 57,384 $ 114,721

Accrued Payroll and Benefits 296,543 226,101

Due to Related Parties 692 202,273

Total Current Liabilities 354,619 543,095

Net Assets

Unrestricted 521,069 491,127

Total Net Assets 521,069 491,127

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 875,688 $1,034,222

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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UTICA ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

For The Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

2016 2015

Revenues and Other Support:

Public School District:

Revenue - Resident Student Enrollment $ 3,181,538 $ 2,218,916

Revenue - Students with Disabilities 90,951 58,883

Federal Grants 212,525 258,659

State Grants 31,092 30,338

Food Service 132,451 84,553

Other Income 23,540 15,937

Total Revenues and Other Support 3,672,097 2,667,286

Expenses:

Program Services:

Regular Education 2,677,548 1,625,055

Special Education 150,773 103,070

Other Programs 236,211 127,881

Total Program Services Expense 3,064,532 1,856,006

Supporting Services:

Management and General 577,623 645,469

Total Expenses 3,642,155 2,501,475

Excess of Revenues and Other

Support Over Expenses 29,942 165,811

Net Assets - Beginning of Year 491,127 325,316

Net Assets - End of Year $ 521,069 $ 491,127

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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UTICA ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For The Year Ended June 30, 2016

(With Comparative Totals For The Year Ended June 30, 2015)

Program Services

Regular Special Other Management Totals
Education Education Programs and General 2016 2015

No. of
Positions

Personnel Service Costs:
Instructional Personnel 35 $ 1,180,926 $ 35,680 $ 5,385 $ 3,695 $ 1,225,686 $ 789,466
Non-Instructional Personnel 7 48,274 - - 56,984 105,258 90,654
Administrative Personnel 7 42,230 - - 305,984 348,214 284,542

Total Salaries and Wages 49 1,271,430 35,680 5,385 366,663 1,679,158 1,164,662

Retirement 154,431 4,697 - 43,618 202,746 174,322
Fringe Benefits and Payroll Taxes 283,061 16,142 - 33,621 332,824 309,619

Total Personnel Services 1,708,922 56,519 5,385 443,902 2,214,728 1,648,603

Building Rent 250,673 28,785 - 14,392 293,850 92,887
Supplies and Materials 131,256 13,210 - 12,277 156,743 122,500
Food Service - - 142,905 - 142,905 70,149
Other Professional Services 86,469 8,991 - 26,274 121,734 63,981
Repairs and Maintenance 90,486 10,574 - 10,340 111,400 33,475
Technology 88,541 10,129 - 8,951 107,621 103,011
Management Fees 88,042 - - 3,194 91,236 94,984
Student Services - - 87,921 - 87,921 51,732
Utilities 66,627 7,716 - 5,141 79,484 47,297
Depreciation and Amortization 66,072 7,773 - 3,886 77,731 19,347
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UTICA ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For The Year Ended June 30, 2016

(With Comparative Totals For The Year Ended June 30, 2015)

(Continued)

Program Services

Regular Special Other Management Totals
Education Education Programs and General 2016 2015

Other Expenses 30,256 542 - 15,001 45,799 40,898
Equipment and Furnishings 32,550 3,211 - 7,737 43,498 32,097
Insurance 24,394 2,886 - 1,276 28,556 22,456
Marketing and Recruitment 6,656 - - 6,297 12,953 25,162
Accounting and Auditing Fees - - - 10,835 10,835 11,520
Professional Development 4,151 150 - 3,141 7,442 13,571
Office Expense 2,453 287 - 1,123 3,863 2,007
Legal Services - - - 3,856 3,856 5,798

Total Expenses $ 2,677,548 $ 150,773 $ 236,211 $ 577,623 $ 3,642,155 $ 2,501,475

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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UTICA ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For The Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

2016 2015

Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Revenue from School Districts $ 3,219,136 $ 2,334,852

Grant Revenues 265,906 314,559

Food Service Fees 147,556 75,527

Other Sources 23,540 15,937

Payments to Vendors for Goods and Services Rendered (1,498,064) (825,483)

Payments to Charter School Personnel for Services Rendered (2,152,202) (1,573,685)

Net Cash Flow Provided By Operating Activities 5,872 341,707

Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Purchase of Property and Equipment (295,812) (44,339)

Cash Flow Used By Investing Activities (295,812) (44,339)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (289,940) 297,368

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 732,026 434,658

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year $ 442,086 $ 732,026
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UTICA ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For The Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

(Continued)

2016 2015

Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Net Cash

Provided by Operating Activities

Excess of Support and Revenue Over Expenses $ 29,942 $ 165,811

Adjustments to Reconcile Excess of Support and Revenue

Over Expenses to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation and Amortization 77,731 19,347

Decrease/(Increase) In:

Accounts Receivable (451) 8,807

Grants Receivable 68,486 34,238

Inventory (4,028) (4,130)

Prepaid Expenses 22,668 (10,580)

Security Deposits - (42,295)

Increase/(Decrease) In:

Accounts Payable (57,337) 80,381

Accrued Payroll and Benefits 70,442 75,717

Due to Related Party (201,581) 14,411

Net Cash Flow Provided By Operating Activities $ 5,872 $ 341,707

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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UTICA ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2016

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Organization
Utica Academy of Science Charter School (the School) is a not-for-profit education
corporation that operates a public charter school with special emphasis on math, science and
technology in Utica, New York. The School seeks to empower students through high
intellectual standards, preparing them for college, career, and citizenship. Currently, the
School serves students in 6th through 11th grade. A grade level will be added each year
through 12th grade. The School obtains its revenue mainly from Charter School Basic Tuition
from the Utica City School District and a few other surrounding school districts, in addition to
food serive and state and federal grants.

The main programs of the School are as follows:

REGULAR EDUCATION: The School's curriculum is focused on mathematics, science, and
technology. The School seeks to graduate students who can think critically and creatively,
who are committed to a lifetime of learning and civic involvement, and who are conscious of
local, global, and environmental issues. All courses align with the New York State Learning
Standards.

SPECIAL EDUCATION: The School is open to all children and does not discriminate on the
basis of ethnicity, national origin, gender, disability, or any other grounds that would be
unlawful or deny the civil rights of any individual. In accordance with the Individuals with
Disabilities Education Act, the Rehabilitation Act, Section 504, and the Americans with
Disabilities Act, the School provides a free and appropriate education, in the least restrictive
environment to students with disabilities. The primary service delivery for students with
special needs is inclusion. Services for students requiring supplemental services are provided
by the Utica City School District.

OTHER PROGRAMS: Other programs include food services, athletics and extra-curricular
activities.

Basis of Accounting
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting. The significant accounting policies followed are described below to enhance the
usefulness of the financial statements to the reader.
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UTICA ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2016
(Continued)

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of Presentation
In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
the School reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to the
existence and nature of donor restrictions in three classes of net assets: unrestricted,
temporarily restricted, and permanently restricted. There were no temporarily or permanently
restricted net assets at June 30, 2016 and 2015.

The School also records contributions received as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or
permanently restricted support, depending on the existence and nature of any donor
restrictions.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America allow the School to
treat as unrestricted, any restricted revenue where the restrictions are met in the same year.
The School has elected to follow that reporting method. As a result, all activities in which
restrictions are met are recorded in the Unrestricted Net Asset class.

The following are descriptions of the School's net asset classifications:

Unrestricted: Unrestricted net assets include resources that are available for the general
support of the School's operations.

Revenue Recognition
A portion of the School's revenue is derived from grants. Amounts received but not yet
earned are reported as deferred revenue.

Funding sources may, at their discretion, amend the grant and contract amounts. In addition,
reimbursement for expenses or return of funds, or both, may be requested as a result of
noncompliance by the School with the terms of the grants and contracts. The School records
such amendments, reimbursements, and returns of funds as an adjustment to revenue in the
year of the amendment.

Contributions
Contributions are recorded at the time of receipt or when evidence of a non-conditional
promise to give has been received. Promises subject to conditions are not recorded as income
until those conditions have been met. Contributions that are expected to be received in future
years are recorded at their present value. Contributions are recorded as unrestricted, unless
they are subject to donor restrictions, or are required to be used or expected to be received in
future years.
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UTICA ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2016
(Continued)

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Accounts and Grants Receivable
Receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect. Amounts that
management believes to be uncollectible after collection efforts have been completed, are
written off. In addition, management evaluates the need for, and if appropriate, provides an
allowance to reduce receivables to amounts management expects will be collected.
Management determined that no allowances were necessary at June 30, 2016 and 2015.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost. The School capitalizes property and equipment
with an estimated life of 3 years or more as follows:

Cost
Buildings and Leasehold Improvements $5,000
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment $2,000
Computer Software $2,000

Furniture and equipment purchased as a bundle greater than $15,000 will be also be
capitalized and all land and vehicle acquisitions are capitalized. Depreciation and amortization
is computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets, as
follows:

Years
Leasehold Improvements 5-15
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 5-10
Computer Software and Hardware 3-5
Vehicles 5

Depreciation and amortization expense amounted to $77,731 and $19,347 for the years ended
June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Income Taxes
The Internal Revenue Service has determined that the School is qualified as a charity exempt
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, and has also determined that the
School is publicly supported. As a result, no provision for federal or state income taxes has
been made.
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UTICA ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2016
(Continued)

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include all cash on hand and in banks, which, at times, may exceed
federally insured limits. The School considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of
three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. Certain of these accounts are not
federally insured. The School has not experienced any losses in these accounts and does not
believe it is exposed to any significant credit risk with respect to cash and cash equivalents.

Cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following at June 30:

2016 2015
Checking $ 367,036 $ 657,006
Savings 75,050 75,020

Total $ 442,086 $ 732,026

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues
and expenses, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results could vary
from those estimates.

Functional Expenses
The costs of providing the various program services have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statement of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among program and supporting services. An immaterial amount of fundraising costs for the
years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 are included in management and general expenses.

Advertising
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.

Inventories
Inventories consist of school uniforms and are recorded at cost.

Reclassifications
Certain account balances as of June 30, 2015 have been reclassified to conform with the
presentation as of June 30, 2016.
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UTICA ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2016
(Continued)

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Comparative Financial Information
The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in
total. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the School’s financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2015 from which the summarized information was
derived.

NOTE 2 - PENSION EXPENSE

The School participates in the New York State Teachers' Retirement System (System), a cost-
sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan administered by the New York State
Teachers' Retirement Board. The System provides retirement, disability, withdrawal and
death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries as authorized by the Education Law and the
Retirement and Social Security Law of the State of New York.

Plan members who joined the System before July 27, 1976 are not required to make
contributions. Those joining after that date and before January 1, 2010, who have less than
ten years of service or membership are required to contribute 3% of their annual salary. Those
joining on or after January 1, 2010 and before April 1, 2012, are required to contribute 3.5%
of their annual salary for their entire working career. Those joining on or after April 1, 2012
are required to contribute between 3% and 6%, dependent upon their salary for their entire
working career.

Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. Rates applicable to the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 were 13.26% and 17.53%, respectively. The total
retirement contribution expense was $202,746 and $174,322 for the years ended June 30,
2016 and 2015, respectively.

NOTE 3 - LINE OF CREDIT

During the year ended June 30, 2016, Utica Academy of Science Charter School opened a line
of credit with a maximum authorization of $150,000. Advances against this line bear interest
at a rate of 1.58% above the Wall Street Journal prime rate. Any borrowings are secured by
assets of the School. There was no amount outstanding at June 30, 2016.
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UTICA ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2016
(Continued)

NOTE 3 - LINE OF CREDIT (Continued)

Utica Academy of Science Charter School had a line of credit with a maximum authorization
of $150,000. Advances against this line bore interest at a rate of 3.5% above the monthly
LIBOR rate. Any borrowings were secured by assets of the School. There were no amounts
outstanding at June 30, 2016 and 2015. This line of credit was closed during the year ended
June 30, 2016.

NOTE 4 - COMMITMENTS

The School is obligated under non-cancelable operating leases for two buildings. For each
lease, the School is responsible for payment of utilities, maintenance, and real property taxes.

The first lease term ends April 30, 2018. Rent is payable in monthly installments of $6,000.

The second lease term ends April 30, 2030. Rent is payable in monthly installments of
$19,227 for the year ended June 30, 2017 with an escalation clause equal to the greater of 4%
or the Consumer Price Index percentage figure relating to the Northeast region of the United
States.

Total rental expense for June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $293,850 and $92,887, respectively.

Future minimum lease payment commitments are as follows:

Year Amount

2017 $302,724
2018 299,953
2019 249,551
2020 259,533
2021 269,914

NOTE 5 - DONATED SERVICES AND GOODS

The School receives donated services that, although substantial, do not meet the criteria for
recording as revenue and expense under accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.
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UTICA ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2016
(Continued)

NOTE 6 - SPECIAL EDUCATION AND OTHER SUPPORT

Special education services required by students of the School are provided by the Utica City
School District. The Utica City School District also provided transportation and nursing
services. The School was unable to determine a value for these services; thus, these financial
statements do not reflect revenue or expenses associated with those services.

The School receives State Aid in the form of textbooks, computer hardware, computer
software and library materials through the Utica City School District. The total aid received
for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $31,092 and $25,338, respectively.

NOTE 7 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The School began leasing school and office space from Terra Science and Education, Inc.
(“Terra”) during the year ended June 30, 2015. Terra and the School share one common
board member. This board member abstains from voting matters affecting both the School
and Terra and is not paid a salary from Terra nor the School. Total rent expense paid to Terra
for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $221,850 and $20,887, respectively. Terra
also holds $42,295 of security deposits due to the School at the termination of the building
lease.

The School shares common board members with the Syracuse Academy of Science Charter
School’s (“Syracuse”) Board of Trustees. During the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, the
School received services from Syracuse for business office operations, human resources
services, information technology consultation, and academic and curriculum related matters.
Total expenses billed to the School for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 were $91,236
and $94,984, respectively. Additionally, Syracuse paid expenses on the School's behalf to
assist with the School's operational costs. Amounts due to Syracuse for the years ended June
30, 2016 and 2015 was $692 and $202,273, respectively.

NOTE 8 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through October 11, 2016, which is the date the
statements were available for issuance.
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UTICA ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016



REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditors' Report

To the Board of Trustees
Utica Academy of Science Charter School
Syracuse, New York

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Utica Academy of
Science Charter School as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise Utica Academy of Science Charter School's basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 11, 2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Utica Academy of
Science Charter School's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Utica
Academy of Science Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Utica Academy of Science Charter School’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Utica Academy of Science Charter School's
financial statements are free of material misstatements, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing
an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Heveron & Company CPAs

Rochester, New York
October 11, 2016
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Auditors' Communications

September 15, 2016

To The Board of Trustees
Utica Academy of Science Charter School
1001 Park Avenue
Syracuse, New York 13204

Dear Board Members:

This letter is intended only for the board and those responsible for management and governance.
Although we did review some of your internal controls, we did not perform an examination of them that
would allow us to give an opinion on the adequacy of your controls.

Those charged with management and governance are responsible for:

 safeguarding your assets,

 ensuring that your resources are used as directed by funders, donors and as required by charities

laws and your own articles of incorporation,

 assuring that you are complying with laws, regulations, contracts and grants associated with your

funding,

 properly recording and reporting results of operations and account balances, and

 proper business practices, operating procedures, documentation and controls.

Our audit was designed to help you with those responsibilities, and is also designed and intended to help
you to benchmark your administrative operations to best practices.

Our Responsibilities to You
As part of our audit we are required to inform you of significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
your controls that we become aware of.

Controls are procedures, policies, and responsibilities that you put in place to make sure that appropriate
transactions take place and are reported properly on your financial statements. Examples of controls are
timely billing for services you perform, ensuring proper payments are received and recorded, and
measures to prevent overpayment of payroll or vendors.



Control deficiencies result when proper procedures are not in place to assure that appropriate
transactions are carried out, recorded and reported properly.

Significant deficiencies are control deficiencies or combinations of control deficiencies that are less
severe than material weaknesses, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Material weaknesses are significant deficiencies or combinations of significant deficiencies such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

The Role of Internal Controls
Internal controls are managements’ standards to safeguard your assets. They include the following
components:

 Setting expectations of integrity and ethical conduct, with actions such as proper hiring and

training,

 Assessing risks based on your operations and your staffing,

 Establishing control activities, such as separation of responsibilities, to reduce risks,

 Communications from senior management to all involved staff about internal controls, and

 Monitoring-ongoing evaluation of whether controls are appropriate and are working.

General Observations

Our general observations are that:

 Your record-keeping system is appropriate for your financial recording and reporting needs
including allocation of revenue and expense to various programs.

 Record-keeping appears to be done in a timely, complete and conscientious manner.

 Internal controls are good given your staff size.

 The attitude of management regarding the importance of proper systems and controls seems
appropriate.

 We did not have disagreements with management in connection with our audits or difficulties in

performing the audits, and, to our knowledge, management did not consult with other CPAs about

audit issues.

 We did not become aware of fraud or illegal acts, and there were no significant financial statement

adjustments or unusual transactions.

 No material accounting adjustments were left unrecorded.

 There were a few changes in accounting policies and procedures this year. You updated your
capitalization policy to address single and bulk purchases. The policy also includes useful lives
for categories of assets such as computers, etc. You re-evaluated how you allocate salaries
between program and management and general. Both of these changes were applied only to the
current year.



Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described above and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. Given these limitations,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this communication is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and the results of that testing. This communication is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Company's internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Sincerely,

Heveron & Company CPAs





 Assumptions

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable

REGULAR 
EDUCATION

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION

OTHER FUNDRAISING
MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL
TOTAL

-                             130,840                 361,773                 -                             5,000                     3,668,444              
2,099,103              146,579                 107,500                 -                             1,263,167              3,616,350              

(2,099,103)             (15,739)                  254,273                 -                             (1,258,167)             52,094                   
340                        20                          -                             

-                             -                             -                             

 REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

 SPECIAL 
EDUCATION  OTHER  FUNDRAISING 

 MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL  TOTAL 

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES

Per Pupil Revenue

District of Location                3,071,680                              -                              -                              -                              -                3,071,680 

School District 2 (Whitesboro)                     30,708                              -                              -                              -                              -                     30,708 

School District 3 (Rome)                     35,289                              -                              -                              -                              -                     35,289 

School District 4 (Frankfort)                      9,560                              -                              -                              -                              -                      9,560 

School District 5 (Westmoreland)                     12,288                              -                              -                              -                              -                     12,288 

School District 5 (Sauqoit)                     11,306                     11,306 

               3,170,831                              -                              -                              -                              -                3,170,831 

Special Education Revenue                              -                   107,060                              -                              -                              -                   107,060 

Grants

Stimulus                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 

Other                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 

Other State Revenue                              -                              -                      3,607                              -                              -                      3,607 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES                              -                   107,060                      3,607                              -                              -                3,281,498 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs                              -                     23,780                              -                              -                              -                     23,780 

Title I                              -                              -                     95,788                              -                              -                     95,788 

Title Funding - Other                              -                              -                     13,600                              -                              -                     13,600 

School Food Service (Free Lunch)                              -                              -                     97,580                              -                              -                     97,580 

Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 

Other                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 

Other Federal Revenue                              -                              -                      4,000                              -                              -                      4,000 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES                              -                     23,780                   210,968                              -                              -                   234,748 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising                              -                              -                              -                              -                      5,000                      5,000 

Erate Reimbursement                              -                              -                     77,980                              -                              -                     77,980 

Interest Income, Earnings on Investments,                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 

NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.)                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 

Food Service (Income from meals)                              -                              -                     10,000                              -                              -                     10,000 

Text Book                              -                              -                     21,252                              -                              -                     21,252 

Other Local Revenue                              -                              -                     37,966                              -                              -                     37,966 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES                              -                              -                   147,198                              -                      5,000                   152,198 

TOTAL REVENUE                              -                   130,840                   361,773                              -                      5,000                3,668,444 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent)

EXPENSES

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS
Executive Management                              -                              -                              -                              -                     36,333                     36,333 
Instructional Management                              -                              -                              -                              -                     75,000                     75,000 
Deans, Directors & Coordinators                              -                              -                              -                              -                     55,000                     55,000 
CFO / Director of Finance                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 
Operation / Business Manager                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 
Administrative Staff                              -                              -                              -                              -                   106,784                   106,784 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF                              -                              -                              -                              -                   273,117                   273,117 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular                   648,500                              -                              -                              -                              -                   648,500 
Teachers - SPED                              -                     37,000                              -                              -                              -                     37,000 
Substitute Teachers                     19,800                      2,200                              -                              -                              -                     22,000 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES

Utica Academy of Science Charter School
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2015-2016

July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10.



 Assumptions

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable

REGULAR 
EDUCATION

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION

OTHER FUNDRAISING
MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL
TOTAL

-                             130,840                 361,773                 -                             5,000                     3,668,444              
2,099,103              146,579                 107,500                 -                             1,263,167              3,616,350              

(2,099,103)             (15,739)                  254,273                 -                             (1,258,167)             52,094                   
340                        20                          -                             

-                             -                             -                             

 REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

 SPECIAL 
EDUCATION  OTHER  FUNDRAISING 

 MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL  TOTAL 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES

Utica Academy of Science Charter School
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2015-2016

July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10.

Teaching Assistants                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 
Specialty Teachers                   229,050                     25,450                              -                              -                              -                   254,500 
Aides                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 
Therapists & Counselors                     34,200                      3,800                              -                              -                              -                     38,000 
Other                     48,150                      5,350                              -                              -                              -                     53,500 Tutoring, PTO buy out and stipend

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL                   979,700                     73,800                              -                              -                              -                1,053,500 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 
Librarian                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 
Custodian                              -                              -                              -                              -                     96,000                     96,000 
Security                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 
Other                              -                              -                              -                              -                     45,000                     45,000 IT specialist

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL                              -                              -                              -                              -                   141,000                   141,000 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                   979,700                     73,800                              -                              -                   414,117                1,467,617 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes                     74,947                      5,646                              -                              -                     31,680                   112,273 

Fringe / Employee Benefits                   229,906                     14,369                              -                              -                     44,667                   288,943 
Retirement / Pension                   148,146                      4,906                              -                              -                     20,205                   173,257 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS                   452,999                     24,921                              -                              -                     96,552                   574,473 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                1,432,699                     98,721                              -                              -                   510,669                2,042,090 

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit                              -                              -                              -                              -                     11,000                     11,000 
Legal                              -                              -                              -                              -                     10,000                     10,000 
Management Company Fee                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 
Nurse Services                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 
Food Service / School Lunch                              -                              -                   100,000                              -                              -                   100,000 Aramark will be serving he food , assumption is 10% profit from the payments
Payroll Services                              -                              -                              -                              -                     11,500                     11,500 
Special Ed Services                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting                     33,650                              -                              -                              -                   196,000                   229,650 Based on 350*$400 for central office services, 39*350 for database;20K for Boces and other 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES                     33,650                              -                   100,000                              -                   228,500                   362,150 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses                              -                              -                              -                              -                      2,500                      2,500 
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials                     85,500                              -                              -                              -                              -                     85,500 
Special Ed Supplies & Materials                              -                      9,500                              -                              -                              -                      9,500 
Textbooks / Workbooks                     31,500                      3,500                              -                              -                              -                     35,000 Additional 11th grade opening 
Supplies & Materials other                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 
Equipment / Furniture                     81,000                      4,500                              -                              -                      4,500                     90,000 100 student combo desk, 3 caf tables, 14 book case, 6 teacher desks, 25 teacher chairs,  13 comp tables, 40 stack chairs, 25 lockers, stools, file cabinets
Telephone                              -                              -                              -                              -                      7,200                      7,200 
Technology                   144,864                      8,048                              -                              -                      8,048                   160,960 20 computers, 20 printers, 11 elmos, 27 imacs, 20 mac minis, central clocks
Student Testing & Assessment                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 
Field Trips                     18,000                      2,000                              -                              -                              -                     20,000 
Transportation (student)                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 
Student Services - other                     73,800                      8,200                              -                              -                     82,000 

Office Expense                              -                              -                              -                              -                     36,000                     36,000 

Staff Development                     27,000                      1,500                              -                              -                      1,500                     30,000 
Staff Recruitment                              -                              -                     10,000                     10,000 
Student Recruitment / Marketing                              -                              -                              -                              -                     15,000                     15,000 
School Meals / Lunch                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 
Travel (Staff)                     22,500                      1,250                              -                              -                      1,250                     25,000 



 Assumptions

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable

REGULAR 
EDUCATION

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION

OTHER FUNDRAISING
MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL
TOTAL

-                             130,840                 361,773                 -                             5,000                     3,668,444              
2,099,103              146,579                 107,500                 -                             1,263,167              3,616,350              

(2,099,103)             (15,739)                  254,273                 -                             (1,258,167)             52,094                   
340                        20                          -                             

-                             -                             -                             

 REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

 SPECIAL 
EDUCATION  OTHER  FUNDRAISING 

 MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL  TOTAL 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES

Utica Academy of Science Charter School
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2015-2016

July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10.

Fundraising                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 

Other                     19,890                      2,210                              -                              -                      1,000                     23,100 
TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS                   504,054                     40,708                              -                              -                     86,998                   631,760 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance                              -                              -                              -                              -                     35,000                     35,000 
Janitorial                              -                              -                              -                              -                     30,000                     30,000 
Building and Land Rent / Lease                              -                              -                              -                              -                   308,850                   308,850 72K for lincoln ave, 221,850 frankfort location, 15 K property tax
Repairs & Maintenance                              -                              -                              -                              -                     56,000                     56,000 

Equipment / Furniture                              -                              -                      7,500                              -                              -                      7,500 
Security                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 

Utilities                   128,700                      7,150                              -                              -                      7,150                   143,000 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE                   128,700                      7,150                      7,500                              -                   437,000                   580,350 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 

DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 

TOTAL EXPENSES                2,099,103                   146,579                   107,500                              -                1,263,167                3,616,350 

NET INCOME              (2,099,103)                   (15,739)                   254,273                              -              (1,258,167)                     52,094 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*
 REGULAR 

EDUCATION 
 SPECIAL 

EDUCATION 
 TOTAL 

ENROLLED 

District of Location 331                        20                          351                        

School District 2 (Whitesboro) 3                            3                            

School District 3 (Rome) 3                            3                            

School District 4 (Frankfort) 1                            1                            
School District 5 (Westmoreland) 1                            1                            
School District 5 (Sauqoit) 1                            1                            

TOTAL ENROLLMENT 340                        20                          360                        

REVENUE PER PUPIL -                             6,542                     1,005                     

EXPENSES PER PUPIL 6,174                     7,329                     299                        
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Entry	9	BOT	Table
Last	updated:	08/01/2016

Page	1

1.	Current	Board	Member	Information

Trustee
Name

Email
Address

Position	on
the	Board

Committee
Affiliations

Voting
Member?
(Y/N)

Area	of
Expertise,
and/or
Additional
Role	at
School
(parent,
staff
member,
etc.)

Number	of
Terms
Served	and
Length	of
Each
(Include
election
date	and
term
expiration)

1 Fehmi
Damkaci

Chair/Boar
d	President

Academic
Committee
Lead,
Financial

Yes

K-12
charter
school
implement
ation	and
governance
;	high	and
middle
school	and
college
level
teaching
and
leadership.
Role:
Leadership,
educational
programs,
financial
operations,
overall
design,	and
application.

Term	1:
8/2006-
8/2008
Term	2:
8/2008-
8/2011
Term	3
8/2011-
8/2014
Term	4:
8/2014-
8/2017

K-12
charter
school
implement
ation	and
governance
,communit

8/2007-
8/2010
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2
Rev.
Sherman
Dunmore

Trustee/Me
mber Outreach Yes

y	leader,
and	former
parent,
current
grandparen
t	of	SASCS.
Role:	Civic
engageme
nt	and
community
outreach.

Term	3:
8/2010-
8/2013
Term	4:
8/2013-
8/2016

3 Ahmet	AY
Vice
Chair/Vice
President

Financial
and
Academic

Yes

K-12
charter
school
implement
ation	and
governance
;	STEM
Education.
Role:	STEM
Education
and
College
Prep
Programs
and	college
relations.

Term	1:
6/2012-
7/2015
Term	2:
7/2015-
8/2018

4 Muriz
Hadzic Treasurer Financial,

Lead Yes

K-12
charter
school
governance
,	youth
community
leader,	and
mentor	for
community
youth.
Role:
Community
outreach,
mentorship
,	and
extracurric
ular
activities.

Term	1:
2/2013-
2/2016

K-12
charter
school
governance
,	non-profit
youthorgan
izatio	ns
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5 Jawwaad
Rasheed

Trustee/Me
mber Academic Yes

and
community
leader,
college
level
teaching.
Role:
College
prep
programs
and	legal
matters

Term	1:
11/2014-
8/2017

6 Channel
Turnquest

Trustee/Me
mber

Outreach,
Lead Yes

K-12
charter
school
governance
,	non-profit
youth
organizatio
ns	and
community
leader,
realestate.
Role:
Community
outreach
and
realestate

Term	1:
7/2015-
8/2016

7 Murat
Baysal

Trustee/Me
mber Academic Yes

K-12
charter
school
governance
;	STEM
education.
Role:	STEM
Education
and
College
Prep
Programs
and
relations

Term	1:
10/2015-
8/2018

8

9

10

11

12

13
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14

15

16

17

18

19

20

2.	Total	Number	of	Members	on	June	30,	2015

7

3.	Total	Number	of	Members	Joining	the	Board	2015-16	School	Year

2

4.	Total	Number	of	Members	Departing	the	Board	during	the	2015-16	School	Year

1

5.	Number	of	Voting	Members	2015-16,	as	set	by	the	by-laws,	resolution	or
minutes

7

6.	Number	of	Board	Meetings	Conducted	in	the	2015-16	School	Year

13

7.	Number	of	Board	Meetings	Scheduled	for	the	2016-17	School	Year

13

Thank	you.
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Utica Academy of Science Charter School 

Board of Trustees 

Regular Meeting 
Minutes 

 
Date : 7/14/2015 
Place : UASCS Building 
 

I. The regular meeting was called to order at 8.45 pm . The board reserves the right 
to act on any and all agenda items. 
 
Open Public Meeting Act Statement 
This meeting has been publicized in accordance with the requirements of the  
New York State Open Meetings Law (OML) and notification given to all appropriate 
parties. The notice of this meeting was posted on the school website. 

  
 Roll Call: 
 

Name Position Voting Attendance 
Dr. Fehmi Damkaci President Yes Present 
Dr. Yildiray Yildirim Vice President Yes Present 
Dr. Ahmet Ay Board Secretary Yes Present 
Muris Hadzic Treasurer Yes Present 
Rev. Sherman Dunmore Trustee Yes Present 
Chanel Turnquest Trustee Yes Absent 
Jawwaad Rasheed Trustee Yes Absent 
Dr. Tolga Hayali Superintendent No Present 
Nick Bilge Chief Financial Officer No Present 
Onur Gokce Chief Technology Officer No Absent 
Ugur Kocak Chief Academic Officer No Present 
Galip Bak Syracuse School Director No Present 
Kadir Yavuz Utica School Director No Present 

 
Others present at the meeting:  
 

II. Approval of Meeting Minutes 
 
Motion to accept the following minutes of the Board of Trustees Meeting (Minutes 
forwarded to Trustees via e-mail.) 
 
Regular Board Meeting of 6/2/2015 
 
Motion by Dr. Ahmet Ay, seconded by Rev. Sherman Dunmore 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 

 

 
 
 



III. Agenda 
1. Approval of new hires (executive) 
2. Approval of school director hiring(executive) 
3. Approval of 2015-16 student handbook 
4. Approval of 2015-16 personnel handbook 
5. Approval of admission policy 
6. Approval of purchase of security cameras for high school 
7. Approval of purchase of phone system for high school 
8. Approval of Superintendent review  
9. Approval of Insurance from Austin and Company 
10. Approval of Educational Services contract renewal 

Discussion 
1. Financial status and budget 
2. Board self-review 
3. Superintendent’s report 
4. Director’s report 

 
Motion by Dr. Yildiray Yildirim, seconded by Dr. Ahmet Ay, to adopt the agenda as 
presented. 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 
 

IV. �Motion # 150714.1  
V. RESOLVED that the hiring of teachers and staff listed in the attached document is 

hereby approved. 
  
Moved by Muris Hadzic, seconded by Rev. Sherman Dunmore. 

Resolution # 150714.1  was adopted unanimously 
 

�Motion # 150714.2  
RESOLVED, that hiring of Mustafa Ersoy as Utica Academy School Director (12 month 
employee starting August 1st for one year is hereby approved. 

 
Moved by Rev. Sherman Dunmore, seconded by Dr. Ahmet Ay. 

Resolution # 150714.2  was adopted unanimously 
 

�Motion # 150714.3  
RESOLVED, that student handbook for 2015-16 school year is hereby approved. 

 
Moved by Dr. Ahmet Ay, seconded by Muris Hadzic. 

Resolution # 150714.3  was adopted unanimously 
 

 

�Motion # 150714.4  
RESOLVED, that personnel handbook for 2015-16 school year is hereby approved. 



 
Moved by Rev. Sherman Dunmore, seconded by Dr. Ahmet Ay. 

Resolution # 150714.4  was adopted unanimously 
 

�Motion # 150714.5  
RESOLVED, that admission policy revisions, including providing priority to employee 
children and backfill policy, is hereby approved. 
Moved by Dr. Yildiray Yildirim, seconded by Rev. Sherman Dunmore. 

Resolution # 150714.5  was adopted unanimously 
 

 

�Motion # 150714.6  
RESOLVED, that purchase of security cameras for Utica High school building from 
TechnoTimes is hereby approved. 

 

 
 

Moved by Dr. Ahmet Ay, seconded by Rev. Sherman Dunmore. 

Resolution # 150714.6  was Choose an item. 
 

�Motion # 150714.7  
RESOLVED, that purchase of phone system and phones for Utica High School building 
from Northland is hereby approved. 

 
Moved by Dr. Ahmet Ay, seconded by Rev. Sherman Dunmore. 

Resolution # 150714.7  was adopted unanimously 
 

 

�Motion # 150714.8  
RESOLVED, that superintendent review rubric is hereby approved. 

 
Moved by Rev. Sherman Dunmore, seconded by Dr. Ahmet Ay. 

Resolution # 150714.8  was  adopted unanimously 
 

Motion # 150714.9  
RESOLVED, that insurance renewal from Austin and Company for 15-16 is hereby 

approved. 
 
Moved by Dr. Ahmet Ay, seconded by Rev. Sherman Dunmore. 

Resolution # 150714.9  was adopted unanimously 
 

Item Quantity TechnoTime B&H PCM-­‐G
Sony	
  SNCCH280	
  Camera 14 $17,291 $17,626 $20,118
Sony	
  SNCDH120	
  Camera 20 $9,177 $9,320 $11,240

Northland Avaya Telephonesystem.com
UASCS	
  Phone	
  System 19,979.00 21,441.43 24,896.83



Motion # 150714.10  
RESOLVED, that the contract for 15-16 Apple Educational Services is hereby approved. 

The charge for the database will be $39/student and mobile application fee for $500/year. 
Additional services provided by Apple may be purchased by superintendent’s approval.  

 
Moved by Dr. Ahmet Ay, seconded by Rev. Sherman Dunmore. 

Resolution # 150714.10  was adopted unanimously 

VI. Discussion Items 
 
1. Financial status and budget: SASCS Financial Dashboard, Month-to-month budget has been 

reviewed and discussed.  
2. Board self-review: Board self-review discussion is tabled for next meeting 
 

VII. Superintendent’s Report 
 
1. Summer Schools are scheduled between July 7 and August 7.  
2. 2 days professional development for directors and school deans were conducted on 

June 29-30. 
3. Letter of Intent to start a new charter school in Syracuse submitted to Board of 

Regents. SASCS and UASCS will serve as a model school for proposed new charter 
school with addition of enrollment preference to ELL students. 

 
UASCS Director’s Report 
 

Total Current Enrollment 228 

Female 107 (46.93%) 
Male 121 (53.07%) 

Demographics  
White  126 (55.26%) 

Black or African American 36 (15.79%) 
Black or African American, White 16 (7.02%) 

Asian 41 (17.98%) 
Other 9 (3.95%) 

Total number of SWD 14 -  6.2% (G:	
  16.9%) 
Total number of LEP 32 – 14.0% (G:	
  14.7%) 
Total Students in Waiting List 564 
Total Out of School Suspensions 8 

 
 
School Activities: 
 

1. On Tuesday, June 2, 2015, 9th grade English and Reading and Research classes had a 
guest speaker, Mr. Larry Goldman of The Golden Law Firm.  

2. Reading and Research along with English Nine collaborated on the ninth grade mock 
trial from April 28 to June 9, 2015. This was a cross-curricular project focusing on 
injustice not only in To Kill a Mockingbird but also in the legal system. The mock trial 
took place on June 9 at the Alexander Pirnie Federal Court Building in Utica, NY. The 
scholars showcased what they had learned throughout the research process through 



their roles of lawyers, medical examiners, eye witnesses, forensic investigators, police 
investigators, psychologists, and Innocence Project experts. They were given resounding 
praise from the judges, including Leland McCormac the Chief Trial Counsel Lawyer for 
Oneida County and Larry Golden of the Gold Law Firm in Utica, NY. 

3. On Tuesday, June 9, 2015, the 6th grade scholars, under the musical direction of Mrs. 
Nazel, presented "An Adventure in Fantasyland" at our new school in Frankfort, NY. 

4. On Wednesday, June 10, 2015, the 7th & 9th grade scholars of Utica Academy of Science 
Charter School presented their End of the Year Concert. 

5. On Wednesday, June 10, 2015, ELL scholars and scholars who receive extra services 
went to Delta Lake State Park. 

6. On Thursday, June 11, 2015, the 10th grade class took a field trip to Barnes and Noble in 
New Hartford. 

7. In May & June 2015, the scholars that showed exemplary behavior and achieve a certain 
number of merit points were rewarded with a field trip to Hoopla. We took some 6 to 10 
grades scholars to Hoopla as a reward because they earned 80 or more merits during the 
school year. 

8. On Friday, June 12, 2015, the 6th grade class had a family fun day and picnic at Proctor 
Park. 

9. On Friday, June 12, 2015, 19 scholars went to Sea Breeze amusement park in Rochester, 
NY. 

10. On Friday, June 12, 2015, 140 UASCS students between 7th-10th grade and 10 chaperons 
(staff and parents) took the end of year field trip to Six Flags - The Great Escape in Lake 
George, NY. 

11. On Monday, June 15, 2015, scholars from Utica Academy of Science attended GENIUS 
Olympiad opening ceremony. 
 

VIII. Executive Session 

Motion by Rev. Sherman Dunmore, seconded by Muris Hadzic to adjourn to Executive 
Session in accordance with the New York State Open Meeting Law §105, to discuss 
topics such as personnel matters, attorney-client privilege matters, pending litigation, 
negotiations and other such related matters. 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 

Please Note: The matters discussed will be made public if and when the circumstances 
requiring confidentiality no longer exist; however, it is not presently known when such 
circumstances will exist. 

 

IX. Reconvene Public Session 
Motion by Rev. Sherman Dunmore, seconded by Dr. Ahmet Ay, to exit the executive 
session.  
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 

 

X. Public Comment on Any Topic 
 
Board President or designee opens the public comment session on any agenda topic. 



Each person is limited to speak for a period of one (1) minute and will be asked to give 
their full name, spell their last name and provide their address.  
Board President or designee closes the public comment session on any agenda topic. 
 
 

XI. Motion by Dr. Ahmet Ay, seconded by Rev. Sherman Dunmore, to adjourn the meeting 

at 9.30 pm . 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 
 



Utica Academy of Science Charter School 

Board of Trustees 

Regular Meeting 
Minutes 

 
Date : 8/11/2015 
Place : UASCS Building 
 

I. The regular meeting was called to order at 8.30 pm . The board reserves the right 
to act on any and all agenda items. 
 
Open Public Meeting Act Statement 
This meeting has been publicized in accordance with the requirements of the  
New York State Open Meetings Law (OML) and notification given to all appropriate 
parties. The notice of this meeting was posted on the school website. 

  
 Roll Call: 
 

Name Position Voting Attendance 
Dr. Fehmi Damkaci President Yes Present 
Dr. Yildiray Yildirim Vice President Yes Present 
Dr. Ahmet Ay Board Secretary Yes Present 
Muris Hadzic Treasurer Yes Present 
Rev. Sherman Dunmore Trustee Yes Present 
Chanel Turnquest Trustee Yes Present 
Jawwaad Rasheed Trustee Yes Present 
Dr. Tolga Hayali Superintendent No Present 
Nick Bilge Chief Financial Officer No Present 
Onur Gokce Chief Technology Officer No Present 
Ugur Kocak Chief Academic Officer No Absent 
Galip Bak Syracuse School Director No Present 
Mustafa Ersoy Utica School Director No Present 

 
Others present at the meeting:  
 

II. Approval of Meeting Minutes 
 
Motion to accept the following minutes of the Board of Trustees Meeting (Minutes 
forwarded to Trustees via e-mail.) 
 
Regular Board Meeting of 7/14/2015 
 
Motion by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Muris Hadzic 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 

 

 
 
 



III. Agenda 
1. Approval of new hires (executive) 
2. Renewal of Dr. Ay’s terms 
3. Approval of enrollment policy 
4. Approval of Purchases 
5. Approval of extension of School Security Contract 
 

Discussion 
1. Financial status and budget 
2. Board self-review 
3. BoT conflict of interest policy 
4. Enrollment Policy 
5. Board membership 
6. Superintendent’s report 
7. Director’s report 

 
Motion by Rev. Sherman Dunmore, seconded by Dr. Ahmet Ay, to adopt the agenda as 
presented. 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 
 

IV. �Motion # 150811.1  
RESOLVED that the hiring of teachers and staff listed in the attached document is 
hereby approved. 
  
Moved by Rev. Sherman Dunmore, seconded by Muris Hadzic. 

Resolution # 150811.1  was adopted unanimously 
 

�Motion # 150811.2  
RESOLVED, that Dr. Ahmet Ay’s BoT membership term until 8/2018 is hereby 
approved. 

 
Moved by Dr. Ahmet Ay, seconded by Jawwaad Rasheed. 

Resolution # 150811.2  was adopted unanimously 
 

�Motion # 150811.3  
RESOLVED, that updated enrollment policy is hereby approved. 

 
Moved by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Rev. Sherman Dunmore. 

Resolution # 150811.3  was adopted unanimously 
 

 

�Motion # 150811.4  
RESOLVED, that purchase of following items from School Specialty, as the lowest quoted 
price for items, to furnish the new high school building are hereby approved. The quotes were 



obtained earlier for Utica High School furniture purchases, and since the prices were not changed 
by the vendors, same quotes were used.  are hereby approved. 
125 desks@131.89/each, total of $16,486.25 and 10 cafeteria tables @1,082/each, total of $10,820.  

 
Moved by Muris Hadzic, seconded by Dr. Ahmet Ay. 

Resolution # 150811.4  was adopted unanimously 
 

�Motion # 150811.5  
After the discussion of satisfaction with security company and their services,  
RESOLVED, that the existing security contract with US securities until end of December 
with the same terms is hereby approved. 

 
Moved by Muris Hadzic, seconded by Rev. Sherman Dunmore. 

Resolution # 150811.5  was adopted unanimously 
 
 

V. Discussion Items 
 
1. Financial status and budget: The budget was briefly reviewed with guidance of Mr 

Bilge.  
2. Board self-review: The board discussed the self-review assessment form of the board. 

It is decided to keep the board as same. Board members will discuss the self-review 
in depth at strategic meeting.   

3. Enrollment policy changes: Several changes were made to enrollment policy, first one 
was to include preference to staff members. Also the language of the policy overall 
was updated in general.  

4. Board membership: Dr Yildirim would like to request not to extend his term since he 
accepted a job offer as a department chair and director of real-estate center at CUNY. 
Therefore, he will move to NYC soon and would like to focus in his new position. He 
served on the board over 10 years at various capacities and thanked for the 
opportunity.   

5. BoT conflict of interest policy: Each board member was given school’s conflict of 
interest and code of ethics policy. The board members were asked to sign and 
declare any conflict of interest. In addition, policy was reviewed briefly to remind 
the important sections. Dr. Fehmi Damkaci told the board that he has no conflict 
interest however he would like to declare again that he is the board president of 
Terra Science and Education, non-profit, which has business with school. However, 
Dr Damkaci does not gain anything from Terra nor any of his relatives. Dr. Ay also 
mentioned that his wife works as the research director at SASCS and he stays 
abstained when any issue related to her is discussed.  

 
VI. Superintendent’s Report 

 
1. Summer Schools/PD: Summer institute is underway. The school planned somewhat 

different program this year. All teachers, especially new teachers, are prepared 
extensively for the use of technology and programs that the school implementing. 



Data and the use of data meetings will be held. Since more of the Utica teachers are 
new to the schools, the school’s expectations, mission, and programs are reviewed 
more in depth.  

2. Schools readiness for the new school year: All buildings are ready for school 
opening. Last minute updates are underway. Teachers are preparing their 
classrooms and curriculum for the year. The new Building is almost ready, some 
furniture is approved today, but will be ready for the first day of school. The school 
will have a opening picnic for parents and community.  

3. ELL & Special Ed. $ FRLP  Recruitment efforts: Mr Hayali talked about all the efforts 
regarding special focus and recruitment of sub-student groups. This year school will 
put more emphasis on recruitment of more applications from these subgroups, 
especially from FRLP and ELL, which are easier to identify and target compare to 
special education students.  

4. NYSLED results: Mr Hayali shared the schools success in moving students from low 
level of ELL to proficient levels in a very short time. The results are very promising 
regarding the success of UASCS for serving ELL population in Utica. The school 
provides at least 2 to 3 times more ELL instruction compared to mandated hours and 
many out of classroom of activities to engage students with society.  

 
UASCS Director’s Report 
 
The school was not in session, therefore there is no report.  
 

VII. Executive Session 

Motion by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Muris Hadzic to adjourn to Executive 
Session in accordance with the New York State Open Meeting Law §105, to discuss 
topics such as personnel matters, attorney-client privilege matters, pending litigation, 
negotiations and other such related matters. 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 

Please Note: The matters discussed will be made public if and when the circumstances 
requiring confidentiality no longer exist; however, it is not presently known when such 
circumstances will exist. 

 

VIII. Reconvene Public Session 
Motion by Dr. Ahmet Ay, seconded by Rev. Sherman Dunmore, to exit the executive 
session.  
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 

IX. Public Comment on Any  Agenda Topic 
 
Board President or designee opens the public comment session on any agenda topic. 
Each person is limited to speak for a period of one (1) minute and will be asked to give 
their full name, spell their last name and provide their address.  
Board President or designee closes the public comment session on any agenda topic. 
 
 

X. Motion by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Muris Hadzic, to adjourn the meeting at 
9.30 pm . 

Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 



Utica Academy of Science Charter School 

Board of Trustees 

Regular Meeting 
Minutes 

 
Date : 9/8/2015 
Place : UASCS Building 
 

I. The regular meeting was called to order at 9.37 pm . The board reserves the right 
to act on any and all agenda items. 
 
Open Public Meeting Act Statement 
This meeting has been publicized in accordance with the requirements of the  
New York State Open Meetings Law (OML) and notification given to all appropriate 
parties. The notice of this meeting was posted on the school website. 

  
 Roll Call: 
 

Name Position Voting Attendance 
Dr. Fehmi Damkaci President Yes Present 
Dr. Yildiray Yildirim Vice President Yes Absent 
Dr. Ahmet Ay Board Secretary Yes Present 
Muris Hadzic Treasurer Yes Present 
Rev. Sherman Dunmore Trustee Yes Absent 
Chanel Turnquest Trustee Yes Present 
Jawwaad Rasheed Trustee Yes Absent 
Dr. Tolga Hayali Superintendent No Present 
Nick Bilge Chief Financial Officer No Present 
Onur Gokce Chief Technology Officer No Absent 
Ugur Kocak Chief Academic Officer No Present 
Galip Bak Syracuse School Director No Present 
Mustafa Ersoy Utica School Director No Present 

 
Others present at the meeting:  
 

II. Approval of Meeting Minutes 
 
Motion to accept the following minutes of the Board of Trustees Meeting (Minutes 
forwarded to Trustees via e-mail.) 
 
Regular Board Meeting of 8/11/2015 
 
Motion by Muris Hadzic, seconded by Chanel Turnquest 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 

 

 
 
 



III. Agenda 
1. Approval of new hires (executive) 
2. Approval of Title I coordinator assignment 
3. Approving of Safety Plan 
4. Approving of using $250K reserved fund for purchasing technology and hiring instructional support 

staff 
5. Approval of renewal of Syracuse Academy Contract at the same rate  
6. Approval of a new board member 
7. Election of vice president 

 

Discussion 
1. Audit process 
2. Code of Ethics and Conflict of Interest Policies 
3. Annual academic status and plans for 2015-16 year. 
4. Annual board retreat 
5. Superintendent’s report 
6. Director’s report (UTICA) 

 
Motion by Dr. Ahmet Ay, seconded by Muris Hadzic, to adopt the agenda as presented. 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 
 

IV. �Motion # 150908.1  
RESOLVED, that the list of hires is hereby approved. 

 
Moved by Dr. Ahmet Ay, seconded by Chanel Turnquest. 

Resolution # 150908.1  was adopted unanimously 
 

�Motion # 150908.2  
RESOLVED, that Title 1 coordinator assignment to Mr. Bilge is hereby approved. 

 
Moved by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Dr. Ahmet Ay. 

Resolution # 150908.2  was adopted unanimously 
 

Motion # 150908.3  
RESOLVED, that safety plan is hereby approved. 

 
Moved by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Muris Hadzic. 

Resolution # 150908.3  was adopted unanimously 
 

Motion # 150908.4  
RESOLVED, that the restriction of $250,000 within the reserve funds to be used for 

technology ($50,000) and instructional support ($200,000) is hereby approved. 
 

Moved by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Dr. Ahmet Ay. 



Resolution # 150908.4  was adopted unanimously 
 

Motion # 150908.5  
RESOLVED, that the renewal of the service contract with Syracuse Academy Charter 

School at the same rate as last year for academic and financial services is hereby approved. 
 

Moved by Dr. Ahmet Ay, seconded by Muris Hadzic. 

Resolution # 150908.5  was adopted unanimously 
 

Motion # 150908.6  
RESOLVED, that the Utica Academy of Science Charter School Board of Trustees, 

having conducted a thorough background check via a fingerprint scan as required and having 
discovered no State or federal criminal history, or having provided such history to SED if 
found, has voted to select Dr. Murat Baysal as a final candidate to its Board of Trustees, with a 
term expiring on 8/1/2018 pending approval by SED.  The resolution approving Dr. Murat 
Baysal is formally adopted upon SED’s approval. 
 

Moved by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Dr. Ahmet Ay. 

Resolution # 150908.6  was adopted unanimously 
 

Motion # 150908.7  
RESOLVED, that Dr. Ay as vice president is hereby approved. 

 
Moved by Muris Hadzic, seconded by Chanel Turnquest. 

Resolution # 150908.7  was adopted unanimously 
 

V. Discussion Items 
 
1. Audit process and updates: Mr Bilge provided information regarding the ongoing audit 

process for past year. Financials were not reviewed due to audit of the business 
office during the week.  

2. Code of Ethics and Conflict of Interest Policies: The policy was distributed for signature 
and certain parts were announced at the meeting as a reminder.  

3. Annual board retreat: Board will hold a retreat in the month of October to go over 
annual data and plans.  

4. Annual academic status and plans or 2015-16: Mr. Kocak provided a 30 minutes 
presentation on the academic status of UASCS in regards to State tests and Regents 
tests (in comparison to State and District) and provided a brief plan to improve the 
school’s academic performance in this year; teacher training, coaching, and retention 
as well as hiring external consultants to help to increase teacher quality. He also 
described the new intervention plan for math and ELA courses and training of 
teachers to be proactive in use of student data provided by Superintendent’s office. 
He also provided tools to be used by teachers in the implementation of curriculum 
etc. 



 
 

VI. Superintendent’s Report 
 
UASCS Director’s Report 

• UASCS has started 2015-16 school year with full capacity of 352 (351) students and 452 students on a wait 
list in 6-11 grade in two separate locations. 

• We had an open house BBQ on August 28 at the new Frankfort location with over 300 people including 
staff, students, parents and board members.  

• We had two weeks rigorous summer orientation to get the new team members ready for the school year 
between August 24 –Sep 3. 

• We hired new instructional coach and a college guidance to strengthen two important areas in our academic 
programs; Literacy across content areas and college guidance for the rising juniors and sophomore. 

• The school is launching a new College Mentorship Program (CMP) to address the needs of high achievers 
as well as strong RTI program. 
  

VII. Executive Session 

Motion by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Muris Hadzic to adjourn to Executive 
Session in accordance with the New York State Open Meeting Law §105, to discuss 
topics such as personnel matters, attorney-client privilege matters, pending litigation, 
negotiations and other such related matters. 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 

Please Note: The matters discussed will be made public if and when the circumstances 
requiring confidentiality no longer exist; however, it is not presently known when such 
circumstances will exist. 

 

VIII. Reconvene Public Session 
Motion by Muris Hadzic, seconded by Chanel Turnquest, to exit the executive session.  
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 

 

IX. Public Comment on Any Topic 
 
Board President or designee opens the public comment session on any agenda topic. 
Each person is limited to speak for a period of one (1) minute and will be asked to give 
their full name, spell their last name and provide their address.  
Board President or designee closes the public comment session on any agenda topic. 
 
 

X. Motion by Dr. Ahmet Ay, seconded by Chanel Turnquest, to adjourn the meeting at 
10.17 pm. . 

Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 
 



Utica Academy of Science Charter School 

Board of Trustees 

Special Board Meeting 
Minutes 

 
Date : 9/22/2015 
Place : SASCS High School 
 

I. The regular meeting was called to order at 7.30 pm . The board reserves the right 
to act on any and all agenda items. 
 
Open Public Meeting Act Statement 
This meeting has been publicized in accordance with the requirements of the  
New York State Open Meetings Law (OML) and notification given to all appropriate 
parties. The notice of this meeting was posted on the school website. 

  
 Roll Call: 
 

Name Position Voting Attendance 
Fehmi Damkaci President Yes Present 
Ahmet Ay Vice President  

Board Secretary 
Yes Present 

Muris Hadzic Treasurer Yes Present 
Sherman Dunmore Trustee Yes Present 
Jawwaad Rasheed Trustee Yes Absent 
Chanel Turnquest Trustee Yes Present 
Murat Baysal Trustee Yes Present 
Tolga Hayali Superintendent No Present 
Nick Bilge Chief Financial Officer No Present 
Onur Gokce Chief Technology Officer No Present 
Ugur Kocak Chief Academic Officer No Absent 
Galip Bak Syracuse School Director No Present 
Mustafa Ersoy Utica School Director No Present 

 
Others present at the meeting:  
 

II. Approval of Meeting Minutes 
 
Motion to accept the following minutes of the Board of Trustees Meeting (Minutes 
forwarded to Trustees via e-mail.) 
 
Regular Board Meeting of Click here to enter a date. 
 
Motion by Choose an item., seconded by Choose an item. 
Roll Call: Choose an item. 

 

 
 



 
III. Agenda 

1. Approval of Chromebooks orders 

 
Motion by Muris Hadzic, seconded by Ahmet Ay, to adopt the agenda as presented. 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 
 

IV. �Motion # 150922.1  
RESOLVED, that purchasing 4 sets of chromebook from Promevo and 3 chromebook 
carts from TouchBoards is hereby approved.  
 

ITEM Location Quantity Quote1 Quote2 Quote3 
Chromebook: 
Lenovo N21 

Utica 135 BlueRange: 
$35,310.00 

BestBuy: $35,375.56 Promevo: $35,310.00 

Cart:  CLOUD 
32 

Utica 4 AudioVideo: 
$18,178.00 

TouchBoards: 
$5,793.62 

Promevo: $7,399.96 

 
 

Moved by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Sherman Dunmore. 

Resolution # 150922.1  was adopted unanimously 
 

V. Executive Session 

Motion by Choose an item., seconded by Choose an item. to adjourn to Executive Session in 
accordance with the New York State Open Meeting Law §105, to discuss topics such as 
personnel matters, attorney-client privilege matters, pending litigation, negotiations and 
other such related matters. 
Roll Call: Choose an item. 

Please Note: The matters discussed will be made public if and when the circumstances 
requiring confidentiality no longer exist; however, it is not presently known when such 
circumstances will exist. 

VI. Reconvene Public Session 
Motion by Choose an item., seconded by Choose an item., to exit the executive session.  
Roll Call: Choose an item. 

VII. Public Comment on Any Agenda Topic 
Board President or designee opens the public comment session on any agenda topic. 
Each person is limited to speak for a period of one (1) minute and will be asked to give 
their full name, spell their last name and provide their address.  
Board President or designee closes the public comment session on any agenda topic. 

VIII. Motion by Muris Hadzic, seconded by Muris Hadzic, to adjourn the meeting at 
7.45 pm . 

Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 
 



Utica Academy of Science Charter School 

Board of Trustees 

Regular Meeting 
Agenda 

 
Date : 10/13/2015 
Place : UASCS High School 
 

I. The regular meeting was called to order at 8.25 pm. The board reserves the right to act on 
any and all agenda items. 
 
Open Public Meeting Act Statement 
This meeting has been publicized in accordance with the requirements of the  
New York State Open Meetings Law (OML) and notification given to all appropriate 
parties. The notice of this meeting was posted on the school website. 

  
  
Others present at the meeting:  
 

II. Approval of Meeting Minutes 
 
Motion to accept the following minutes of the Board of Trustees Meeting (Minutes 
forwarded to Trustees via e-mail.) 
 
Regular Board Meeting of 9/8/2015 and 9/22/2015 
Motion by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Muris Hadzic 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 

 
III. Agenda 

1. Approval of new hires 
2. Approval of Refreshment and Drink Policy 
3. Approval of Title 1&2 grant budget as proposed 
4. Approval of Credit Card application for UASCS 
5. Approval of Audit report 

 

Discussion 
1. Financial status and budget 
2. Independent Audit Review (executive session) 
3. September & October Star Math and Reading test results data analysis 
4. Superintendent’s report 
5. Director’s report (UASCS) 

 
Motion by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Muris Hadzic, to adopt the agenda as 
presented. 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 
 

 



IV. Discussion Items 
 
1. Financial status and budget: Financials are reviewed. Financial dashboard and 

monthly statements were presented.  
2. Independent Audit Review (executive session): Auditor provided a summary of the 2014-

15 summary. Auditor notified the board that there is no material weakness and all 
the recommendations which were made last year have been implemented by the 
school. Board asked what else we can do to improve our processes.  

3. BoT retreat day: Sunday October 18th at 1.30 pm, at Utica high school. The board will 
review itself and will focus on its recruitment plan. The agenda will be sent.  

4. September & October Star Math and Reading test results data analysis: Mr Bekir Duz 
provided a presentation on Star Math and Reading test results and intervention 
plans. Board asked questions regarding the growth on certain grade level. Board 
would like to get reporting on the monthly reporting on these tests. Teacher training 
continues in order to implement these monthly testing.    

 
V. Superintendent’s Report 

 
UASCS Director’s Report 

 
Total Current Enrollment 341 
Female 160 – 47% 
Male 181 – 53% 
Demographics  
White 194 – 57% 
Black 81 – 23.6% 
Hispanic 56 – 16.5% 
Asian 42 – 12.5% 
Other 24 – 7% 
Total number of FRPL  (G:	
  78.1%) 
Total number of SWD 32 – 9.4% (G:	
  16.9%) 
Total number of ELL 36 – 10.6% (G:	
  14.7%) 
Total number of students eligible for 
FRLP 

69 as of 10/9/2015 
*still in process 

Total Students in Waiting List 206  
Total Out of School Suspensions 12 – 3.5% 

 
School Activities: 
Back to School BBQ 
On Saturday, September 26, we had another big turnout with over 200 people on a nice 
sunny day. Our students and parents also got a chance to meet with UAS staff and get 
an opportunity to sign up over 20 clubs. 
 
RTI Program and After School Clubs 
Based on Star Test results and student GPA, New After School RTI program has started 
as of Sept 28. It is supported by college tutors to reach out to more students in a small 



tutoring setting. UAS also started its after school clubs with over 20 different clubs 
including International diversity club, karate, basketball, cooking club and more. 
 
 
Saturday School  
Saturday school will start on October 10 from 9:00am -12:00pm helping scholars in 
various content areas including ELL. 
 
UAS Leadership Series 
Assemblymen Antony Brindisi visited the UAS High School on October 9th and met with 
the sophomores as well as a luncheon with several UAS parents. He has impressed with 
the school and the hard work UAS team put in place every day. 
 
 
 

VI. Motion by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Sherman Dunmore, to adjourn the meeting 
at 9.15 pm. 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 
 



Utica Academy of Science Charter School 

Board of Trustees 

Regular Meeting 
Minutes 

 
Date : 11/10/2015 
Place : SASCS High School 
 

I. The regular meeting was called to order at 9.05 pm. The board reserves the right to act 
on any and all agenda items. 
 
Open Public Meeting Act Statement 
This meeting has been publicized in accordance with the requirements of the  
New York State Open Meetings Law (OML) and notification given to all appropriate 
parties. The notice of this meeting was posted on the school website. 

  
 Roll Call: 
 

Name Position Voting Attendance 
Fehmi Damkaci President Yes Present 
Ahmet Ay Vice President  

Board Secretary 
Yes Present 

Muris Hadzic Treasurer Yes Present 
Sherman Dunmore Trustee Yes Present 
Jawwaad Rasheed Trustee Yes Present 
Chanel Turnquest Trustee Yes Present 
Murat Baysal Trustee Yes Absent 
Tolga Hayali Superintendent No Present 
Nick Bilge Chief Financial Officer No Present 
Onur Gokce Chief Technology Officer No Absent 
Ugur Kocak Chief Academic Officer No Absent 
Galip Bak Syracuse School Director No Present 
Mustafa Ersoy Utica School Director No Present 

 
Others present at the meeting: Mr. Duz (Staff) 
 

II. Approval of Meeting Minutes 
 
Motion to accept the following minutes of the Board of Trustees Meeting (Minutes 
forwarded to Trustees via e-mail.) 
 
Regular Board Meeting of 10/13/2015 
 
Motion by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Ahmet Ay 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 

 

 
 



 
III. Agenda 

1. Approval of 990 tax form 
2. Approval of Wellness policy 
3. Approval of Opening a Keybank Checking Account 
4. Approval of new hires ( executive session) 
5.  

 

Discussion 
1. Financial status and budget 
2.  Academic reporting 
3. Facilities 
4. Staff Issues, if any (executive session) 
5. Superintendent’s report 
6. Director’s report (SASCS) 

 
Motion by Muris Hadzic, seconded by Sherman Dunmore, to adopt the agenda as 
presented. 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 
 

IV. �Motion # 20151110.1 
RESOLVED, that 990 form prepared by auditor is hereby approved. 

 
Moved by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Ahmet Ay. 
Resolution # 20151110.1 was adopted unanimously 
 
�Motion #20151110.2 
RESOLVED, that updated wellness policy is hereby tabled after discussion to include 
exceptions for birthdays, afterschool activities, etc. Celebrations exceptions can be 
increased. 

 
Moved by Choose an item., seconded by Choose an item.. 
Resolution # 20151110.2 was Choose an item. 
 
�Motion #20151110.3 
RESOLVED, that a checking account with Keybank lunch funds is hereby approved. 

 
Moved by Muris Hadzic, seconded by Chanel Turnquest. 
Resolution # 20151110.3 was adopted unanimously 
 
�Motion #20151110.4 
RESOLVED, that hiring list provided by HR and a recruitment of a math teacher (to be 
reported in next moth) is hereby approved. 

 
Moved by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Ahmet Ay. 
Resolution # 20151110.4 was adopted unanimously 
 
 



V. Discussion Items 
 
1. Financial status and budget: Financial summary and income statement were reviewed. 

School has tight budget. Must be closely followed in terms of spending. Budget 
revision will be needed to transfer funds from unused line items.  

2.  Academic reporting: Star math and Reading monthly testing results for two months 
have been reviewed. Certain grades show very slow or no growth. Action plan for 
these were discussed. Superintendent explained the use of data by school leaders to 
improve academic performance. School leaders will closely follow these students 
and will provide extra support.  

3. Facilities: New high school building has been utilized well, most of the immediate 
needs (library, seating area, etc) were provided. All tech needs are set at the moment.  

4. Staff Issues, (executive session) 
 

UASCS Director’s Report 
 

UAS	
  Monthly	
  Report	
   

School:	
  Utica	
  Academy	
  of	
  Science	
  Charter	
  School	
   

Month:	
  	
  November	
   Year:	
  2015 

Total	
  Current	
  Enrollment 346	
  	
  (352	
  cap)	
  

Female 165	
  (48	
  %)	
  

Male 181	
  (52%)	
  

Demographics 	
  
White	
   196	
  (57%)	
  

Black 81	
  (23.4%)	
  
Hispanic 56	
  (15%)	
  

Asian 41	
  (12%)	
  

Other 28	
  (8%)	
  

Total	
  number	
  of	
  SWD 26	
  (7%)	
  (G:	
  16.9%)	
  

Total	
  number	
  of	
  ELL 38-­‐including	
  10	
  scholars	
  that	
  receive	
  extended	
  time	
  
(11%)	
  (G:	
  14.7%)	
  

Total	
  number	
  of	
  students	
  eligible	
  for	
  FRLP 43	
  reduced,	
  194	
  free	
  	
  (69%),	
  not	
  finalized	
  yet	
  (G:	
  78.1%)	
  

Total	
  Students	
  in	
  Waiting	
  List 206	
  

Total	
  Out	
  of	
  School	
  Suspensions 19	
  (5.5%)	
  two	
  and	
  half	
  months	
  

 

School	
  Activities: 



UAS	
  Atoms	
  Won	
  2nd	
  Place	
  in	
  Robotics	
  Competition:	
  Utica	
  Academy	
  Scholars	
  attend	
  to	
  a	
  FLL	
  Robotics	
  
competition	
  in	
  NJ	
  and	
  won	
  two	
  medals.	
  The	
  Atoms	
  won	
  the	
  second	
  place	
  in	
  best	
  mechanical	
  design	
  and	
  
third	
  place	
  in	
  overall	
  competition.	
  Congratulations	
  to	
  all	
  Scholars!	
  

STEM	
  Fieldtrip,	
  Herkimer	
  Diamond	
  Mine	
  -­‐	
  UAS	
  10th	
  grade	
  scholars	
  visited	
  Herkimer	
  Diamond	
  Mine	
  with	
  
their	
  earth	
  science	
  classes.	
  Scholars	
  had	
  an	
  opportunity	
  to	
  experience	
  hands-­‐on	
  activities	
  about	
  what	
  
have	
  been	
  introduced	
  in	
  their	
  science	
  classes.	
  

Leadership	
  Series,	
  Senator	
  Griffo	
  -­‐	
  Senator	
  Griffo	
  visited	
  the	
  UASCS	
  High	
  School	
  on	
  Tuesday,	
  October	
  
28,	
  2015.	
  Our	
  sophomores	
  as	
  well	
  as	
  their	
  parents	
  had	
  a	
  quality	
  time	
  with	
  senator	
  where	
  they	
  could	
  ask	
  
questions	
  and	
  expand	
  their	
  knowledge	
  in	
  politics. 

Fall	
  Cleaning-­‐	
  On	
  Saturday,	
  October	
  24.	
  2015	
  UASCS	
  scholars	
  volunteered	
  through	
  the	
  Oneida	
  County	
  
Office	
  of	
  Aging	
  and	
  Youth	
  Bureau	
  group.	
  They	
  helped	
  out	
  senior	
  citizens	
  rake leaves in their backyards. To 
reward our  scholars for their generous work they were taken to McDonalds for lunch. 

PSAT’S-­‐	
  On	
  October	
  23.	
  2015,	
  66	
  sophomores	
  and	
  junior	
  scholars	
  took	
  PSAT	
  for	
  college.	
  	
  Success	
  rate	
  
will	
  be	
  used	
  to	
  assess	
  individual	
  and	
  collective	
  preparation	
  for	
  college	
  readiness. 

Fall	
  Festival	
  -­‐	
  The	
  second	
  annual	
  Fall	
  Festival	
  on	
  October	
  28,	
  2015	
  was	
  a	
  great	
  success.	
  Students	
  and	
  
families	
  from	
  all	
  UASCS	
  grades	
  were	
  in	
  attendance	
  and	
  enjoyed	
  the	
  games,	
  snacks	
  and	
  haunted	
  house	
  
from	
  6:00	
  until	
  8:00	
  in	
  the	
  evening.	
   

 
VI. Executive Session 

Motion by Sherman Dunmore, seconded by Chanel Turnquest to adjourn to Executive 
Session in accordance with the New York State Open Meeting Law §105, to discuss 
topics such as personnel matters, attorney-client privilege matters, pending litigation, 
negotiations and other such related matters. 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 

Please Note: The matters discussed will be made public if and when the circumstances 
requiring confidentiality no longer exist; however, it is not presently known when such 
circumstances will exist. 

 

VII. Reconvene Public Session 
Motion by Muris Hadzic, seconded by Chanel Turnquest, to exit the executive session.  
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 

 

VIII. Public Comment on Any Agenda Topic 
 
Board President or designee opens the public comment session on any agenda topic. 
Each person is limited to speak for a period of one (1) minute and will be asked to give 
their full name, spell their last name and provide their address.  
Board President or designee closes the public comment session on any agenda topic. 
 
 



IX. Motion by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Ahmet Ay, to adjourn the meeting at 
9.53 pm . 

Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 
 



Utica Academy of Science Charter School 

Board of Trustees 

Regular Meeting 
Minutes 

 
Date : 12/8/2015 
Place : UASCS High School 
 

I. The regular meeting was called to order at 7.15 pm . The board reserves the right 
to act on any and all agenda items. 
 
Open Public Meeting Act Statement 
This meeting has been publicized in accordance with the requirements of the  
New York State Open Meetings Law (OML) and notification given to all appropriate 
parties. The notice of this meeting was posted on the school website. 

  
 Roll Call: 
 

Name Position Voting Attendance 
Fehmi Damkaci President Yes Present 
Ahmet Ay Vice President  

Board Secretary 
Yes Present 

Muris Hadzic Treasurer Yes Absent 
Sherman Dunmore Trustee Yes Present 
Jawwaad Rasheed Trustee Yes Present 
Chanel Turnquest Trustee Yes Present 
Murat Baysal Trustee Yes Present 
Tolga Hayali Superintendent No Present 
Nick Bilge Chief Financial Officer No Present 
Onur Gokce Chief Technology Officer No Absent 
Ugur Kocak Chief Academic Officer No Absent 
Galip Bak Syracuse School Director No Present 
Mustafa Ersoy Utica School Director No Present 

 
Others present at the meeting: Mrs Muok, parent of SAS 
 

II. Approval of Meeting Minutes 
 
Motion to accept the following minutes of the Board of Trustees Meeting (Minutes 
forwarded to Trustees via e-mail.) 
 
Regular Board Meeting of 11/10/2015 
 
Motion by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Ahmet Ay 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 

 

 
 



 
III. Agenda 

1. Approval of new hires 
2. Approval of changing the health insurance to self-funded health insurance 
3. Approval of bank account openings for the health insurance claims 
4. Approval of changing dental insurance to Delta  Dental Insurance 
5. Approval of changing vision and long term disability  insurances 
6. Approval of capitalization policy 
7. Approval of RFP responses for Security Services 
8. Approval of wellness policy 

 

Discussion 
1. Financial status and budget 
2. Academic: Monthly Star Math and Reading test result data analysis 
3. Fall teacher survey analysis 
4. Outside evaluator for schools 
5. PR company 
6. Suspension rate and improvement 
7. School report 

 
Motion by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Ahmet Ay, to adopt the agenda as 
presented. 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 
 

IV. �Motion # 151208.1  
RESOLVED, that hiring of teachers and staff listed in the attached document is hereby 
approved. 

 
Moved by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Jawwaad Rasheed. 

Resolution # 151208.1  was adopted unanimously 
 

�Motion # 151208.2  
Staff is surveyed regarding the change and 80-85% of the staff will not be impacted by 
the change, and the school’s savings will be around $30-40,000 at the worst case, the 
employee contribution will stay the same, unless it will increase if we stay in the same 
group, and the school has another insurance to handle high risk cases with the new 
system.  
RESOLVED, that changing the health insurance to self-funded health insurance is 
hereby approved. 

 
Moved by Sherman Dunmore, seconded by Ahmet Ay. 

Resolution # 151208.2  was adopted unanimously 
 

�Motion # 151208.3  
Principal dental network is smaller compared to Delta dental insurance and have a 



better coverage and delta provides a better pricing, and the benefits stays the same for 
the staff, 
RESOLVED, that changing dental insurance to Delta is hereby approved. 

 
Moved by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Jawwaad Rasheed. 

Resolution # 151208.3  was adopted unanimously 
 

�Motion # 151208.4  
For a better coverage and pricing, and the benefits stays the same for the staff, 
RESOLVED, that changing vision and long term disability insurance to Lincoln Services 
is hereby approved. 

 
Moved by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Jawwaad Rasheed. 

Resolution # 151208.4  was adopted unanimously 
 

�Motion # 151208.5  
Keybank, Chase, and M&T bank were surveyed for handling health insurance claims, 
and only Keybank offered no-fee interest bearing checking account, 
 
RESOLVED, that bank account openings at Keybank for the health insurance claims is 
hereby approved. 

 
Moved by Ahmet Ay, seconded by Sherman Dunmore. 

Resolution # 151208.5  was adopted unanimously 
 

 

�Motion # 151208.6  
Capitalization policy is updated to provide more details (dollar cut offs and depreciation 

method, and useful timeline for more line items) for accounting purposes and the policy is 
cleared with the auditor,  

RESOLVED, that capitalization policy is hereby approved.  
 

Moved by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Jawwaad Rasheed. 

Resolution # 151208.6  was adopted unanimously 
 

�Motion # 151208.7  
Schools deans are satisfied with the services of the current company, and the students 

and parents are used to the staff of the current company and changing them in the middle of the 
year will impact the school discipline, and the lowest two companies do not have strong 
financials as much and have only 5 years of experience in the field compared to the current 
company which has 59 years of experience,  

RESOLVED, that Security Services from U.S. Securities based on RFP responses is 
hereby approved. 



 
Moved by Jawwaad Rasheed, seconded by Murat Baysal. 

Resolution # 151208.7  was adopted unanimously 
 

�Motion # 151208.8  
 
RESOLVED, that wellness policy is hereby approved. 
  

 
Moved by Sherman Dunmore, seconded by Chanel Turnquest. 

Resolution # 151208.8  was adopted unanimously 
 

V. Discussion Items 
 
1. Financial status and budget: Financial summaries and dashboard has been analyzed. 

Month of cash has been questioned. The budget will be revised for next month’s 
meeting.  

2. Academic: Monthly Star Math and Reading test result data analysis: Board reviewed the 
monthly math and reading test results for the last two months. 6th grades have a 
slow improvement; however 7th and 8th graders have a faster improvement. Support 
services have been discussed and the new consultant in English will help teacher to 
improve instruction quality.  

3. Fall teacher survey analysis; Board review the teacher survey summaries and overall 
happy with the outcome however identified the following issues to be improved this 
year as a focus area: PD services, analyzing data with teachers, role of district office, 
and providing more time to collaborate with each other. 

4. Outside evaluator for schools: retired superintendent as an outside evaluator for board 
and superintendent by observing schools and classrooms. The board thinks that it 
will be useful for the board for making decision based on her feedback.  

5. PR company: The school is looking for PR companies to help school’s media relations.  
6. Suspension rate was discussed, additional PD should be provided to first time 

teachers at the school. District office will hire consultants regarding student issues, 

United	
  American	
  Security 	
  $	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  15.85	
   	
  $	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  23.78	
  

background	
  
check	
  ,	
  training,	
  
uniform,	
  

No	
  K-­‐12	
  
setting	
  
experienc 5	
  years

Summerville	
  Security 	
  $	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  13.45	
   	
  $	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  20.00	
  

background	
  
check,	
  training,	
  
support,	
  
insurance

K-­‐12	
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experienc
e	
  in	
   5	
  years

U.S.	
  Securities 	
  $	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  16.90	
   	
  $	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  25.35	
  

background	
  
check,	
  training,	
  
insurance,	
  
support

We	
  have	
  been	
  working	
  
with	
  US	
  securities	
  since	
  
September	
  2014.	
  All	
  the	
  
deans	
  responded	
  that	
  
they	
  are	
  happy	
  with	
  
their	
  performance.

K-­‐12	
  
setting	
  
experienc
e	
  and	
  
college	
  
experienc
e 59	
  years



Reverend Dunmore will come to school for addressing students regarding respect to 
teachers and staff members. Students can be brought to prison to set up examples.  

 
VI. School Report 

Month:	
   	
  December	
   Year:	
  2015 

Total	
  Current	
  Enrollment	
   348	
  (cap	
  352)	
  

Female	
   167	
  -­‐	
  48%	
  
Male	
   181	
  -­‐	
  52%	
  

Demographics	
   	
  
White	
  	
   194	
  –	
  55.7%	
  
Black	
   83	
  –	
  23.8%	
  

Hispanic	
   32	
  –	
  9%	
  
Asian	
   44	
  –	
  12.9%	
  
Other	
   27	
  –	
  7.8%	
  

Total	
  number	
  of	
  SWD	
   24	
  –	
  6.9	
  %	
  (G:	
  16.9%)	
  

Total	
  number	
  of	
  LEP	
   57-­‐w/	
  10	
  receiving	
  extended	
  time	
  16.4%	
  (G:14.7%)	
  	
  

Total	
  number	
  of	
  students	
  eligible	
  for	
  FRLP	
   268	
  –	
  77%	
  (G:	
  78.1%)	
  

Total	
  Students	
  in	
  Waiting	
  List	
   206	
  

Total	
  Out	
  of	
  School	
  Suspensions	
   10	
  for	
  month	
  of	
  November	
  

 

School	
  Activities: 

UAS	
  Atoms	
  Visited	
  Mayor:	
  UAS MS Robotics Team visited Mayor Palmieri in his office today. 
Scholars congratulated Mayor on his re-election and shared their success stories in the FLL 
Robotics Competition in NJ. We look forward to seeing Mayor Palmieri at UAS Leadership Speaker 
Series soon. Congratulations	
  to	
  all	
  Scholars! 

	
  

	
  

	
  

	
  

	
  



	
  

First	
  Quarter	
  Award	
  Ceremony	
  -­‐	
  UAS	
  10th	
  grade	
  scholars	
  visited	
  Herkimer	
  Diamond	
  Mine	
  with	
  their	
  
earth	
  science	
  classes.	
  Scholars	
  had	
  an	
  opportunity	
  to	
  experience	
  hands-­‐on	
  activities	
  about	
  what	
  have	
  
been	
  introduced	
  in	
  their	
  science	
  classes.	
  

UAS	
  Parent	
  Involvement	
  Committee	
  -­‐	
  UAS 
Parent Involvement Committee (PIC) had its second meeting this month and decided annual projects to focus 
on this school year which includes building a school library, volunteer tutors, UAS media outreach and 
fundraising activities. We want to thank our parents involved in PIC for their leadership and dedication. The 
first outreach event is going to be Media Panel in December. 

 

MS	
  Creative	
  Writing	
  Club:	
  On Tuesday November 18th, the MS's Creative Writing Club went on their first 
field trip. Students went to see the award winning author, Jason Reynolds in Albany. Reynolds received 
the American Library Association’s Coretta Scott King/John Steptoe Award for When I Was the 
Greatest (2014). The MS's CWC first ate dinner together, then drove to Huxley Theater in downtown 
Albany. Reynolds was a very engaging author who was willing to talk to the students and take a picture or 
two with them. UASCS now owns one book, The Boy in the Black Suit, and another book is being sent to 
us. 

 

 
 

VII. Executive Session 

Motion by Sherman Dunmore, seconded by Chanel Turnquest to adjourn to Executive 
Session in accordance with the New York State Open Meeting Law §105, to discuss 



topics such as personnel matters, attorney-client privilege matters, pending litigation, 
negotiations and other such related matters. 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 

Please Note: The matters discussed will be made public if and when the circumstances 
requiring confidentiality no longer exist; however, it is not presently known when such 
circumstances will exist. 

 

VIII. Reconvene Public Session 
Motion by Ahmet Ay, seconded by Jawwaad Rasheed, to exit the executive session.  
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 

 

IX. Public Comment on Any Agenda Topic 
 
Board President or designee opens the public comment session on any agenda topic. 
Each person is limited to speak for a period of one (1) minute and will be asked to give 
their full name, spell their last name and provide their address.  
Board President or designee closes the public comment session on any agenda topic. 
 
 

X. Motion by Ahmet Ay, seconded by Jawwaad Rasheed, to adjourn the meeting at 
8.45 . 

Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 
 



Utica Academy of Science Charter School 

Board of Trustees 

Regular Meeting 
Minutes 

 
Date : 1/19/2016 
Place : SASCS High School 
 

I. The regular meeting was called to order at  8.55 pm The board reserves the right 
to act on any and all agenda items. 
 
Open Public Meeting Act Statement 
This meeting has been publicized in accordance with the requirements of the  
New York State Open Meetings Law (OML) and notification given to all appropriate 
parties. The notice of this meeting was posted on the school website. 

  
 Roll Call: 
 

Name Position Voting Attendance 

Fehmi Damkaci President Yes Present 

Ahmet Ay Vice President  
Board Secretary 

Yes Present 

Muris Hadzic Treasurer Yes Present 

Sherman Dunmore Trustee Yes Present 

Jawwaad Rasheed Trustee Yes Absent 

Chanel Turnquest Trustee Yes Present 

Murat Baysal Trustee Yes Present 

Tolga Hayali Superintendent No Present 

Nick Bilge Chief Financial Officer No Present 

Onur Gokce Chief Technology Officer No Absent 

Ugur Kocak Chief Academic Officer No Absent 

Galip Bak Syracuse School Director No Present 

Mustafa Ersoy Utica School Director No Present 

 
Others present at the meeting:  
 

II. Approval of Meeting Minutes 
 
Motion to accept the following minutes of the Board of Trustees Meeting (Minutes 
forwarded to Trustees via e-mail.) 
 
Regular Board Meeting of 12/8/2015 
 
Motion by Murat Baysal, seconded by Muris Hadzic 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 

 

 



 
 

III. Agenda 
1. Approval of new hires 

2. Approval of revised budget 

3. Approval of revised service contract with SASCS 

 

Discussion 
1. Financial status and budget 

2. January Star Math and Reading test result data analysis 

3. Recruitment Plan and Priorities for 2016 Application Cycle: 

4. Superintendent’s report 

 

Motion by Muris Hadzic, seconded by Murat Baysal, to adopt the agenda as presented. 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 
 

IV. ► Motion  # 160119.1  
RESOLVED, that hiring of teachers and staff listed in the attached document is hereby 
approved. 

 
Moved by Muris Hadzic, seconded by Murat Baysal. 

Resolution  # 160119.1   was adopted unanimously 

 

►Motion  # 160119.2   

RESOLVED, that revised budget is hereby approved. 
 

Moved by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Ahmet Ay. 

Resolution  # 160119.2   was adopted unanimously 

 
 

►Motion  # 160119.3   

Whereas the per student cost of the services provided by SASCS to UASCS has been 
changed due to changes in employees involved in services, and the contract has been 
revised only regarding the per student cost. 
RESOLVED, that revised service contract ($300 per student) with SASCS for providing 
academic and financial, etc. for 2015-16 school year is hereby approved. 
 
Moved by Sherman Dunmore, seconded by Chanel Turnquest. 

Resolution  # 160119.3  was adopted unanimously 

 
 

V. Discussion Items 
 



1. Financial status and budget: Revised budget was reviewed. Mr. Bilge provided

information on items which are revised. Also, financial statement was reviewed.

2. January Star Math and Reading test result data analysis: The monthly data was

reviewed. The data also included the trend and performance by grade over 4

months. Certain grades needs more aggressive intervention in order to get all grade

level in both subjects higher than state average. The school is looking for ELA

intervention tools as they have for math. Currently, they are testing couple

programs.

3. Recruitment Plan and Priorities for 2016 Application Cycle: The school will focus on

targeted recruitment to increase its ELL and FRLP population. School will try to

purchase mailing address of families with certain income level and will work closely

with Catholic charities regarding ELL recruitment.

4. 3rd year review: State Visit in February; Preparations regarding state visit has been

discussed briefly.

VI. Superintendent’s Report

School Dean Report 

Total Current Enrollment 346 

Female 162 (46.8%) 

Male 184 (53.2%) 

Demographics 

White 193 (55.8%) 

Black 83 (23.9%) 

Hispanic 63 (18.2%) 

Asian 44 (12.7) 

Total number of SWD 26 (7.5%, Goal: 16.9%) 

Total number of LEP 44 ELL scholars and 10 w/ extended time 

Total: 54 (15.6%, Goal: 14.7%) 

Total number of students eligible for FRLP 35 reduced and 234 free as of 1/8/2016 

Total: 269 (77.7%, Goal: 78.1%) 

Total Students in Waiting List 

Total Out of School Suspensions 7 suspensions – 4W, 2H, 1B 

School Activities: 

UAS Atoms Participated FTC Qualifiers: The high school FTC robotics team, UAS Atoms, participated to 
FTC robotics qualifiers in December 13, 2015 in Sauquoit Valley High School. 

The high school FTC robotics team, UAS Atoms, participated to FTC robotics qualifiers in December 13, 
2015 in Sauquoit Valley High School. 

Others 26 (7.5%)



 

    

 

 

 

 

 

UAS School Spirit Assembly – Mr. Morris Pearson from MVCC Director of Civic Responsibilities was a 
guest speaker for our Spirit week assembly.  Mr. Pearson focused on positive decision-making and the 
coexisting in a diverse community.  

 

 

UAS Staff vs. Students Basketball Game: On the last day of the spirit week, UAS staff (The Magicians) 

and the scholars (Team Curry) played a very competitive game in the Frankfort GYM. The UAS 
scholars have proven themselves to be ready for the league in the upcoming school year. 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 



UAS Scholars volunteered at Rescue Mission: UAS Scholars went to rescue mission to help gift-
wrapping for the holiday season with their teachers.  

 

 

    

 

 

VII. Executive Session 

Motion by Muris Hadzic, seconded by Ahmet Ay to adjourn to Executive Session in 
accordance with the New York State Open Meeting Law §105, to discuss topics such as 
personnel matters, attorney-client privilege matters, pending litigation, negotiations and 
other such related matters. 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 

Please Note: The matters discussed will be made public if and when the circumstances 
requiring confidentiality no longer exist; however, it is not presently known when such 
circumstances will exist. 

 

VIII. Reconvene Public Session 
Motion by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Sherman Dunmore, to exit the executive 
session.  
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 

 

IX. Public Comment on Any Agenda Topic 
 
Board President or designee opens the public comment session on any agenda topic. 
Each person is limited to speak for a period of one (1) minute and will be asked to give 
their full name, spell their last name and provide their address.  
Board President or designee closes the public comment session on any agenda topic. 
 
 

X. Motion by Sherman Dunmore, seconded by Muris Hadzic, to adjourn the meeting 

at 9.35 pm . 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 
 

 

 



Utica Academy of Science Charter School 

Board of Trustees 

Regular Meeting 
Minutes 

 
Date : 2/9/2016 
Place : UASCS High School 
 

I. The regular meeting was called to order at  7.31 pm . The board reserves the right 
to act on any and all agenda items. 
 
Open Public Meeting Act Statement 
This meeting has been publicized in accordance with the requirements of the  
New York State Open Meetings Law (OML) and notification given to all appropriate 
parties. The notice of this meeting was posted on the school website. 

  
 Roll Call: 
 

Name Position Voting Attendance 
Fehmi Damkaci President Yes Present 
Ahmet Ay Vice President  

Board Secretary 
Yes Present 

Muris Hadzic Treasurer Yes Present 
Sherman Dunmore Trustee Yes Present 
Jawwaad Rasheed Trustee Yes Present 
Chanel Turnquest Trustee Yes Present 
Murat Baysal Trustee Yes Present 
Tolga Hayali Superintendent No Absent 
Nick Bilge Chief Financial Officer No Present 
Onur Gokce Chief Technology Officer No Absent 
Ugur Kocak Chief Academic Officer No Absent 
Galip Bak Syracuse School Director No Present 
Mustafa Ersoy Utica School Director No Present 

 
Others present at the meeting:  
 

II. Approval of Meeting Minutes 
 
Motion to accept the following minutes of the Board of Trustees Meeting (Minutes 
forwarded to Trustees via e-mail.) 
 
Regular Board Meeting of 1/19/2016 
 
Motion by Sherman Dunmore, seconded by Chanel Turnquest 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 

 

 
 



 
III. Agenda 

1. Approval of Student Dismissal Policy 
2. Approval of School Visitor Policy 
3. Approval of transferring bank accounts to Key Bank 

Discussion 
1. Financial status and budget 
2. HR audit 

3. Non-Certified teacher rates presentation 
4. January Star Math and Reading test result data analysis 
5. Board members bios and pictures to update school website 
6. State mid-term visit in February: 
7. Superintendent’s report 

 
Motion by Muris Hadzic, seconded by Murat Baysal, to adopt the agenda as presented. 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 
 
 

�Motion # 160209.1  
RESOLVED, student dismissal policy is hereby approved as presented.  

 
Moved by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Sherman Dunmore. 

Resolution # 160209.1  was adopted unanimously 
 
 

�Motion # 160209.2  
RESOLVED, school visitor policy is hereby approved. 
 
Moved by Muris Hadzic, seconded by Chanel Turnquest. 

Resolution # 160209.2  was adopted unanimously 
 

 

�Motion # 160209.3   
RESOLVED, that the all bank accounts from M&T Bank is closed when all the checks are 
cleared and transferred to Key Bank is hereby approved. 
 
Moved by Chanel Turnquest, seconded by Jawwaad Rasheed. 

Resolution # 160209.3  was adopted unanimously 
 
 
 
 
 

IV. Discussion Items 



 
1. Financial status and budget: Mr Bilge, CFO provided a presentation over summary of 

financials and financial dashboard. The school is tight in cash, and district’s delay in 
payments put stress on purchasing department, but most of these issues should be 
resolved by next year.  

2. HR audit: The school will like to have an HR audit. It will cost less than $3K and will not need 
board approval, but board is notified regarding the practice.  

3. Non-Certified teacher rates presentation: A presentation has been made regarding 
number of non-certified staff members, their status, and subject areas, and 
challenges.  

4. January Star Math and Reading test result data analysis: Star math results has been 
presented. The data included last 5 months data by grade and subject, in comparison 
to State average, district average, and school’s performance last year. Since this is the 
first year they system is implemented and not all students took the test on a monthly 
basis, the data is not reliable to make any decision at the moment. However, the 
school asked to implement the STAR testing for all students for next months so we 
can get much better data. ELA classrooms need more help, and school already have 
consultant helping teachers to increase the quality of teaching. Regardless, in all 
grades and subject areas, there is a growth, which is promising.   

5. Board members bios and pictures to update school website: Board members do not like 
their full bios and pictures on websites, however, names and titles will be posted on 
website.  

6. State mid-term visit in Thursday February, 25th at 12.30 pm: preparation regarding the 
visit is provided. Sme board members may not be able to attend since they have 
course to teach at the time. However they will ty to get out of classroom to make the 
meeting with state.  

7. Superintendent’s report 
 

V. Superintendent’s Report 
School Dean Report 

Total	
  Current	
  Enrollment	
   345	
  

Female	
   161	
  

Male	
   184	
  
Demographics	
   	
  

White	
  	
   193	
  –	
  55.9%	
  
Black	
   80	
  –	
  23.2%	
  

Hispanic	
   62	
  –	
  18.0%	
  	
  

Asian	
   44	
  –	
  12.8%	
  

Others	
   28	
  –	
  8.1%	
  

Total	
  number	
  of	
  SWD	
   26	
  -­‐	
  7.5%	
  (G:	
  16.9%)	
  



Total	
  number	
  of	
  LEP	
   44	
  ELL	
  scholars	
  and	
  10	
  w/	
  extended	
  time	
  

Total:	
  54	
  -­‐	
  12.8%	
  /	
  15.6%	
  (G:	
  14.7%)	
  
Total	
  number	
  of	
  students	
  eligible	
  for	
  FRLP	
   35	
  reduced	
  and	
  233	
  free	
  as	
  of	
  2/5/2016	
  

Total:	
  268	
  -­‐	
  77.7%	
  (G:	
  78.1%)	
  
Total	
  Students	
  in	
  Waiting	
  List	
   81	
  new	
  applications	
  2016-­‐17	
  
Total	
  Out	
  of	
  School	
  Suspensions	
   2	
  suspensions	
  	
  

 

School	
  Activities: 

UAS	
  Atoms	
  Participated	
  FTC	
  Qualifiers: On	
  February6th,	
  2016,	
  UASCS	
  Middle	
  School	
  had	
  their	
  first	
  
competition	
  in	
  2015-­‐2016.	
  	
  The	
  UASCS	
  Math	
  Olympiad	
  Team	
  Member	
  Everett	
  Fischer	
  did	
  2nd	
  place	
  on	
  
Countdown	
  Part	
  and	
  the	
  Team	
  won	
  3rd	
  Place	
  held	
  on	
  February	
  6th,	
  2016	
  at	
  MVC	
  College.	
  Math	
  Counts	
  
is	
  a	
  nationwide	
  math	
  coaching	
  and	
  competition	
  program	
  for	
  middle-­‐school	
  students.	
  Math	
  Counts	
  
promotes	
  student	
  interest	
  in	
  math	
  by	
  making	
  math	
  achievement	
  challenging,	
  exciting,	
  and	
  prestigious	
  as	
  
a	
  school	
  sport.	
  Our	
  Math	
  Olympiad	
  team	
  worked	
  extremely	
  hard	
  on	
  weekdays	
  and	
  Saturdays	
  to	
  
represent	
  UASCS	
  at	
  the	
  competition.	
  The	
  UASCS	
  Community	
  is	
  proud	
  of	
  our	
  dedicated	
  Coach	
  and	
  the	
  
following	
  Math	
  Olympiad	
  team.	
  

   	
  

	
  

	
  

	
  

	
  

	
  

UAS	
  Mid-­‐Year	
  Site	
  Visit	
  –	
  We	
  are	
  getting	
  ready	
  for	
  the	
  visit	
  scheduled	
  on	
  Feb	
  24,	
  25.	
  We	
  work	
  on	
  
curriculum	
  planning;	
  lesson	
  plans;	
  parent,	
  student	
  and	
  staff	
  survey.	
  	
  

Utica	
  Local	
  Media	
  News	
  about	
  Bussing	
  and	
  Outreach	
  Efforts	
  –	
  Recently	
  Utica	
  OD	
  has	
  covered	
  a	
  story	
  
about	
  UCS	
  budget	
  and	
  questioned	
  the	
  possibility	
  of	
  cutting	
  UASCS	
  transportation	
  services	
  for	
  the	
  HS	
  
Building.	
  Utica	
  OD	
  had	
  an	
  editorial	
  piece	
  supporting	
  this	
  idea.	
  We	
  reached	
  out	
  to	
  our	
  attorney	
  and	
  
charter	
  school	
  association	
  also	
  issued	
  a	
  response	
  letter.	
  We	
  also	
  work	
  with	
  our	
  parents	
  to	
  write	
  a	
  
response	
  to	
  this	
  article.	
  In	
  addition,	
  	
  

Guest	
  Speakers	
  -­‐	
  We	
  invite	
  Oneida	
  County	
  District	
  Attorney	
  Scott	
  McNamara	
  to	
  our	
  school	
  as	
  a	
  guest	
  
speaker.	
  We	
  also	
  met	
  with	
  Young	
  Scholars	
  Program	
  Director,	
  Pamela	
  Matt.	
  We	
  discuss	
  the	
  possibility	
  of	
  
bringing	
  Young	
  Scholars	
  Program	
  to	
  UAS	
  for	
  next	
  year.	
  Ms.	
  Matt	
  will	
  speak	
  with	
  its	
  local	
  supporting	
  
organizations	
  including	
  Community	
  Foundation	
  in	
  Utica	
  for	
  approval.	
  	
  



Partnership	
  with	
  Local	
  Organizations	
  –	
  To	
  revamp	
  UAS	
  code	
  of	
  conduct	
  with	
  additional	
  support	
  for	
  
behaviorally	
  challenging	
  students,	
  we	
  are	
  in	
  process	
  of	
  reaching	
  out	
  to	
  local	
  organizations	
  including	
  
MVCC,	
  Junior	
  Frontier,	
  Literacy	
  Coalition,	
  and	
  United	
  Ways.	
  We	
  need	
  your	
  support	
  to	
  make	
  these	
  
connections	
  to	
  bring	
  additional	
  support	
  services	
  for	
  these	
  students.	
  

Future	
  Events	
  –	
  UAS	
  Media	
  Panel	
  is	
  scheduled	
  on	
  Thursday,	
  March	
  3.	
  Local	
  media	
  and	
  community	
  
members	
  will	
  be	
  invited	
  to	
  the	
  panel.	
  The	
  panelist	
  will	
  be	
  UASCS	
  Stakeholders	
  including	
  parents,	
  
teachers,	
  students,	
  admins,	
  board	
  members	
  and	
  local	
  community	
  members.	
  	
  

VI. Executive Session 

Motion by Choose an item., seconded by Choose an item. to adjourn to Executive Session in 
accordance with the New York State Open Meeting Law §105, to discuss topics such as 
personnel matters, attorney-client privilege matters, pending litigation, negotiations and 
other such related matters. 
Roll Call: Choose an item. 

Please Note: The matters discussed will be made public if and when the circumstances 
requiring confidentiality no longer exist; however, it is not presently known when such 
circumstances will exist. 

 

VII. Reconvene Public Session 
Motion by Choose an item., seconded by Choose an item., to exit the executive session.  
Roll Call: Choose an item. 

 

VIII. Public Comment on Any  Agenda Topic 
 
Board President or designee opens the public comment session on any agenda topic. 
Each person is limited to speak for a period of one (1) minute and will be asked to give 
their full name, spell their last name and provide their address.  
Board President or designee closes the public comment session on any agenda topic. 
 
 

IX. Motion by Sherman Dunmore, seconded by Jawwaad Rasheed, to adjourn the meeting 

at   8.45 pm . 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 
 



Utica Academy of Science Charter School 

Board of Trustees 

Regular Meeting 
Minutes 

 
Date : 3/8/2016 
Place : SASCS High School 
 

I. The regular meeting was called to order at 8.40 pm . The board reserves the right 
to act on any and all agenda items. 
 
Open Public Meeting Act Statement 
This meeting has been publicized in accordance with the requirements of the  
New York State Open Meetings Law (OML) and notification given to all appropriate 
parties. The notice of this meeting was posted on the school website. 

  
 Roll Call: 
 

Name Position Voting Attendance 
Fehmi Damkaci President Yes Present 
Ahmet Ay Vice President  

Board Secretary 
Yes Present 

Muris Hadzic Treasurer Yes Present 
Sherman Dunmore Trustee Yes Present 
Jawwaad Rasheed Trustee Yes Present 
Chanel Turnquest Trustee Yes Present 
Murat Baysal Trustee Yes Present 
Tolga Hayali Superintendent No Present 
Nick Bilge Chief Financial Officer No Present 
Mustafa Ersoy Utica School Director No Present 

 
Others present at the meeting:  
 

II. Approval of Meeting Minutes 
 
Motion to accept the following minutes of the Board of Trustees Meeting (Minutes 
forwarded to Trustees via e-mail.) 
 
Regular Board Meeting of 2/9/2016 
 
Motion by Muris Hadzic, seconded by Sherman Dunmore 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 

 

 
 
 
 
 



III. Agenda 
1. None 

Discussion 
1. Financial status and budget 
2. January Star Math and Reading test result data analysis 
3. Recruitment of special sub groups -109 application 
4. School Wide Culture program 
5. State Visit in May 
6. Superintendent’s report 

 
Motion by Sherman Dunmore, seconded by Chanel Turnquest, to adopt the agenda as 
presented. 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 
 

 
 

IV. Discussion Items 
 
1. Financial status and budget: Mr Bilge reviewed the Financial Summary of the school. The 

grants which were approved were discussed. He also mentioned new grants which will be 
applied soon. The UASCS budget is tight and every purchase is reviewed by Superintendent 
to make sure that we have good cash flow. State budget and its impact on charter budgets has 
been discussed.  

2. January Star Math and Reading test result data analysis: Math and ELA Start test results 
since beginning of year was analyzed in comparison with last year’s state average, district 
average, and school’s performance. Also annual projection of all start testing results and end-
of-year expectations were analyzed for every grade. In both Math and ELA subject the level of 
certain classrooms lag behind compared to others subjects and grades. School has been 
working on identifying the reasons and addressing the issue. Issue also might be that Star 
testing is in its first year in Utica and still takes time to adjust the delivery and use as a 
intervention tool.  

3. Recruitment of special sub groups (119 applications as of today): there are 100 seats for the 
following year. School visited and dropped fliers/brochures at 14 organizations. In addition, 
the school performed door-to-door recruitment/flier distribution at neighborhoods where more 
refugee population lives.  

4. School Wide Culture program: Mr Ersoy provided the following presentation and answered 
question from board members regarding school culture, suspensions, etc.  

UASCS GUIDE TO ESTABLISHING POSITIVE SCHOOL CULTURE AND  REDUCING NEGATIVE 
CONSEQUENCES 2015-16 

UASCS team has been working diligently to adopt PBIS positive behavioral intervention system methods reduce, 

while involving all aspect of its stake holders including parents, teachers students, counselors as well as community 

members. Here are some the steps that UASCS has taken in 2015-16 school year. 



• School wide culture and climate survey –school wide 

• Weekly focus group meetings with students  

• Collaborate with MVCC Staff including Director of Civic Respon. & Chief Conduct Officer, Morris 

Pearson, Dr. Nivia Cavic, Mr. Patrick Johnson 

o UASCS Staff Cultural Sensitivity Training – Mr. Patrick Johnson 

o Working with difficult students – Dr. Cavic 

o Uplifting school culture and climate – Mr. Pearson 

• Outside professional development – Motivating and managing hard to reach disruptive students by Brian 

Mendler – Syracuse March 17 - - 6 staff members will attend the PD and will educate others at the school 

• Grade level Focus meeting to unify classroom management practices 

• Grade level assemblies  

• Positive reinforcement – Fieldtrips, Lock-in fun evenings 

• Home visits done by administrators and teachers  

• Collaboration with Utica Youth and Families Inc. – Bruce Martin 

 
5. State Visit in May: May 5th or 12th for both; May 12th   
6. School invited the President of Oneida-Herkimer Community Foundation for the school visit. 

The school will create relationship with the foundation for creating networking opportunities 
for the school; inviting speakers and applying for special grants to support school needs.   

 
V. Superintendent’s Report 

School Dean Report 

Month:	
  March	
  	
   Year:	
  2016 

Total	
  Current	
  Enrollment 340 

Female 157	
  –	
  46.2% 

Male 183	
  –	
  53.8% 

Demographics  

White	
   185	
  -­‐	
  54.4%	
  

Black 81	
  –	
  23.8%	
  

Hispanic 61	
  –	
  17.9%	
  

Asian 45	
  –	
  13.2%	
  

Others	
   29	
  –	
  8.5%	
  

Total	
  number	
  of	
  SWD 22	
  –	
  6.5%	
  (G:	
  16.9%)	
  

Total	
  number	
  of	
  LEP 46	
  ELL	
  scholars	
  and	
  10	
  w/	
  extended	
  time	
  13.5%	
  -­‐16.5%	
  (G:	
  14.7%)	
  

Total:	
  56	
  
Total	
  number	
  of	
  students	
  eligible	
  for	
  FRLP 37	
  reduced	
  and	
  230	
  free	
  as	
  of	
  3/7/2016	
  

Total:	
  267	
  -­‐	
  78.5%	
  (G:	
  78.1%)	
  



Total	
  Students	
  in	
  Waiting	
  List 	
  

Total	
  Out	
  of	
  School	
  Suspensions High	
  School	
  è	
  2	
  

Middle	
  School	
  è	
  2	
  

	
  

	
  

Field	
  Trips	
  
Feb	
  10	
  	
  è 	
  UASCS	
  2nd	
  Award	
  Ceremony	
  –	
  Parents	
  teachers	
  and	
  students	
  celebrated	
  UASCS	
  scholars	
  success	
  
on	
  Wednesday,	
  March	
  2	
  at	
  UASCS	
  café.	
  	
  Utica	
  College	
  Education	
  Dean	
  Patricia	
  Hallock	
  was	
  the	
  guest	
  of	
  honor	
  
to	
  speak	
  with	
  parents	
  and	
  students	
  about	
  her	
  story.	
  

March	
  3	
  èCommunity	
  &	
  Media	
  Panel	
  –	
  	
  We	
  had	
  several	
  parents	
  and	
  community	
  members	
  showed	
  up	
  at	
  
the	
  panel	
  along	
  with	
  a	
  TV	
  station	
  CNY.	
  	
  It	
  was	
  a	
  good	
  effort	
  to	
  reach	
  out	
  to	
  the	
  community	
  and	
  talk	
  about	
  
UASCS	
  program	
  in	
  Utica.	
  

March	
  4	
  è6th	
  grade	
  field	
  trip	
  to	
  AMF	
  Pin-­‐O-­‐Rama	
  Lanes	
  

è8-­‐11	
  grade	
  scholars	
  w/	
  most	
  merits	
  =>field	
  trip	
  to	
  New	
  York	
  State	
  Museum	
  in	
  Albany,	
  NY	
  

March	
  10	
  è10th	
  &	
  11th	
  grade	
  field	
  trip	
  to	
  Onondaga	
  Community	
  College	
  

Utica	
  Comets	
  Hockey	
  Players	
  will	
  be	
  visiting	
  our	
  high	
  school	
  on	
  Wednesday,	
  March	
  16,	
  2016	
  at	
  2:30pm.	
  

 

VI. Executive Session 

Motion by Choose an item., seconded by Choose an item. to adjourn to Executive Session in 
accordance with the New York State Open Meeting Law §105, to discuss topics such as 
personnel matters, attorney-client privilege matters, pending litigation, negotiations and 
other such related matters. 
Roll Call: Choose an item. 

Please Note: The matters discussed will be made public if and when the circumstances 
requiring confidentiality no longer exist; however, it is not presently known when such 
circumstances will exist. 

 

VII. Reconvene Public Session 
Motion by Choose an item., seconded by Choose an item., to exit the executive session.  
Roll Call: Choose an item. 

Public Session was reconvened at . 

 

VIII. Public Comment on Any Agenda Topic 
 



Board President or designee opens the public comment session on any agenda topic. 
Each person is limited to speak for a period of one (1) minute and will be asked to give 
their full name, spell their last name and provide their address.  
Board President or designee closes the public comment session on any agenda topic. 
 
 

IX. Motion by Sherman Dunmore, seconded by Murat Baysal, to adjourn the meeting at 
9.59 pm . 

Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 
 



Utica Academy of Science Charter School 

Board of Trustees 

Regular Meeting 
Minutes 

 
Date : 4/12/2016 
Place : UASCS High School 
 

I. The regular meeting was called to order at 7.10 pm. The board reserves the right to act on 
any and all agenda items. 
 
Open Public Meeting Act Statement 
This meeting has been publicized in accordance with the requirements of the  
New York State Open Meetings Law (OML) and notification given to all appropriate 
parties. The notice of this meeting was posted on the school website. 

  
 Roll Call: 
 

Name Position Voting Attendance 
Fehmi Damkaci President Yes Present 
Ahmet Ay Vice President  

Board Secretary 
Yes Absent 

Muris Hadzic Treasurer Yes Present 
Sherman Dunmore Trustee Yes Present 
Jawwaad Rasheed Trustee Yes Absent 
Chanel Turnquest Trustee Yes Present 
Murat Baysal Trustee Yes Present 
Tolga Hayali Superintendent No Present 
Nick Bilge Chief Financial Officer No Present 

 
Others present at the meeting: Mr. Bekir Duz, Nathan Williams (student, member of Quarks 
team)  
 

II. Approval of Meeting Minutes 
 
Motion to accept the following minutes of the Board of Trustees Meeting (Minutes 
forwarded to Trustees via e-mail.) 
 
Regular Board Meeting of 3/8/2016 
 
Motion by Murat Baysal , seconded by Muris Hadzic 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 

 

 
 
 
 
 



III. Agenda 
1. Approval of new hires 

Discussion 
1. Financial status and budget 
2. Lottery was held in UAS high school on April, 12, 2016. 
3. Academic report 
4. Superintendent’s report 

 
Motion by Sherman Dunmore, seconded by Channel Turnquest to adopt the agenda as 
presented. 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 
 

IV. �Motion # 160412.1  
RESOLVED, that hiring of teachers and staff listed in the attached document is hereby 
approved. 

 
Moved by Sherman Dunmore, seconded by Channel Turnquest. 

Resolution # 160412.1  was Adopted unanimously 
 
 

 

V. Discussion Items 
 
1. Financial status and budget: Mr Bilge provided information about financial summary 

and balance sheet. Questions were asked for budget planning for 2016-17 and 
current budget proposal by the governor for the charter school funding. There is no 
expectation in terms of increase in student funding. Therefore school will make 
budget based on this year’s budget.  

2. Lottery was held in UAS high school on April, 12, 2016: 146 applications by April 1st 
for 107 seats. 

3. Academic report: Due to state tests in April, Start Testing was not held in schools. It 
will be reported in May. 16 opt-outs in Math and 10 opt-outs in ELA state testing.  

4. Superintendent’s report 
5. School met with SURPO in order to attract more SWD students. The school will 

work with them.  
 

VI. Superintendent’s Report 
School Dean Reports 

 
Total	
  Current	
  Enrollment 336 

Female 153 

Male 184 



Demographics  

White	
   182	
  –	
  54.2% 

Black 78	
  –	
  23.2%	
  

Hispanic 60 – 17.9% 

Asian 47 – 14% 

Others	
   29–	
  8.6%	
  

Total	
  number	
  of	
  SWD 20	
  –	
  5.9%	
  (G:	
  16.9%) 

Total	
  number	
  of	
  LEP 47 ELL scholars and 10 w/ extended time 

Total: 57 - 13.9%	
  -­‐16.9%	
  (G:	
  14.7%) 
Total	
  number	
  of	
  students	
  eligible	
  for	
  FRLP 33 reduced and 233 free as of 4/11/2016 

Total: 266 –	
  79.2%	
  (G:	
  78.1%) 
Total	
  Students	
  in	
  Waiting	
  List  

Total	
  Out	
  of	
  School	
  Suspensions High School è4 

Middle School è0 
 

School	
  Activities:	
  

Utica	
  College	
  Science	
  Fair-­‐April	
  2nd	
  

One	
  of	
  our	
  students	
  won	
  the	
  first	
  place	
  and	
  nominated	
  for	
  Intel	
  Science	
  Fair	
  in	
  May	
  in	
  Arizona.	
  

6th	
  grade	
  field	
  trip	
  to	
  MVCC	
  (NanoDays)-­‐April	
  1st	
  

MVCC	
  Field	
  Trip	
  (10th	
  and	
  11th	
  graders)-­‐April	
  8th	
  

Henry	
  Hudson	
  Planetarium	
  Field	
  Trip	
  (10th	
  grade)-­‐April	
  13th	
  

Oneida	
  County	
  Wastewater	
  Treatment	
  Plant	
  Field	
  Trip	
  (10th	
  grade)-­‐April	
  20th	
  

Oneida	
  County	
  Wastewater	
  Treatment	
  Plant	
  Field	
  Trip	
  (10th	
  grade)-­‐April	
  21th	
  	
  

Russell	
  Sage	
  College	
  (8th-­‐11th	
  grade)	
  April	
  21th	
  

 

VII. Executive Session 

Motion by Muris Hadzic, seconded by Murat Baysal to adjourn to Executive Session in 
accordance with the New York State Open Meeting Law §105, to discuss topics such as 
personnel matters, attorney-client privilege matters, pending litigation, negotiations and 
other such related matters. 
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 



Please Note: The matters discussed will be made public if and when the circumstances 
requiring confidentiality no longer exist; however, it is not presently known when such 
circumstances will exist. 

 

VIII. Reconvene Public Session 
Motion by Murat Baysal, seconded by Chanell Turnquest, to exit the executive session.  
Roll Call: Adopted unanimously 

 

IX. Public Comment on Any Agenda Topic 
 
Board President or designee opens the public comment session on any agenda topic. 
Each person is limited to speak for a period of one (1) minute and will be asked to give 
their full name, spell their last name and provide their address.  
Board President or designee closes the public comment session on any agenda topic. 
 
 

X. Motion by Channel Turnquest, seconded by Sherman Dunmore, to adjourn the 
meeting at 8.44 pm. 
Roll Call: adopted unanimously 
 



Utica Academy of Science Charter School 

Board of Trustees 

Regular Meeting 
Minutes 

 
Date : 5/10/2016 
Place : SASCS High School 
 

I. The regular meeting was called to order at 9.15 pm. The board reserves the right to act on 
any and all agenda items. 
 
Open Public Meeting Act Statement 
This meeting has been publicized in accordance with the requirements of the  
New York State Open Meetings Law (OML) and notification given to all appropriate 
parties. The notice of this meeting was posted on the school website. 

  
 Roll Call: 
 

Name Position Voting Attendance 
Fehmi Damkaci President Yes Present 
Ahmet Ay Vice President  

Board Secretary 
Yes Present 

Muris Hadzic Treasurer Yes Present 
Sherman Dunmore Trustee Yes Present 
Jawwaad Rasheed Trustee Yes Present 
Chanel Turnquest Trustee Yes Present 
Murat Baysal Trustee Yes Present 
Tolga Hayali Superintendent No Present 
Nick Bilge Chief Financial Officer No Present 

Mustafa Ersoy Utica School Director No Present 
 
Others present at the meeting:  
 

II. Approval of Meeting Minutes 
 
Motion to accept the following minutes of the Board of Trustees Meeting (Minutes 
forwarded to Trustees via e-mail.) 
 
Regular Board Meeting of 4/12/2016 
 
Motion by Hadzic, seconded by Baysal 
Roll Call: unanimously 

 
 

III. Agenda 
1. Approval of renewal and hire of instructional staff for 2016-17 – executive session 
2. Approval of Teacher Pay scale – executive session 
3. Approval of Co-teacher pay scale 



Discussion 
1. Financial status and budget 
2. Draft 2016-17 Budget – executive session 
3. State visit at Utica Academy High School 160 School lane at 1.30 pm, Thursday May 12th. 
4. Draft Policy site 
5. March Star Math and Reading test result data analysis 
6. Superintendent’s report 

 
Motion by Dunmore, seconded by Turnquest, to adopt the agenda as presented. 
Roll Call: unanimously 
 

IV. Motion #160510.1 
RESOLVED, that the renewal and hire of instructional staff for 2016-17 as listed in the 
attached document is hereby approved. 

 
Moved by Turnquest, seconded by Ay. 
Resolution # 160510.1 was unanimously 

 
Motion #160510.2 
RESOLVED, that teacher payscale is hereby approved. 

 
Moved by Ay, seconded by Turnquest. 
Resolution # 160510.2 was unanimously 
 
Motion #160510.3 
RESOLVED, that co-teacher pay scale as described below is hereby approved. 
1. 1st year co-teachers and base salary for continuing co-teachers: $28,000 
2. Continuing co-teachers will receive $750 increase per year of UASCS/SASCS service  

 
Moved by Baysal, seconded by Hadzic. 
Resolution # 160510.3 was unanimously 

 

V. Discussion Items 
 
1. Financial status and budget 
2. Draft 2016-17 Budget – executive session 
3. BoT meeting at Utica Academy High School 160 School lane at 1.30 pm, Thursday May 12th. 
4. March Star Math and Reading test result data analysis 
 

VI. Superintendent’s Report 
School Dean Reports 

School:	
  Utica	
  Academy	
  of	
  Science	
  Charter	
  School	
   

Month:	
   	
  May	
  	
   Year:	
  2016 

Total	
  Current	
  Enrollment 335 

Female 152 



Male 183 
Demographics  

White	
   182	
  –	
  54.3% 

Black 77	
  –	
  23%	
  

Hispanic 60 – 18.5% 

Asian 47 – 14% 

Others 29 – 8.7% 
Total	
  number	
  of	
  SWD 21	
  –	
  6.2%	
  (G:	
  16.9%) 
Total	
  number	
  of	
  LEP 47 ELL scholars and 10 w/ extended time 

Total: 57 13.9%	
  -­‐16.9%	
  (G:	
  14.7%) 
Total	
  number	
  of	
  students	
  eligible	
  for	
  FRLP 33 reduced and 231 free as of 5/9/2016 

Total: 264 –	
  78.8%	
  (G:	
  78.1%) 
Total	
  Out	
  of	
  School	
  Suspensions High School è1 

Middle School è2 

School	
  Activities:	
  

May	
  13th	
  è International	
  Night	
  at	
  MS	
  

May	
  9th	
  -­‐13th	
  èScholastic	
  Book	
  Fair	
  at	
  MS	
  (PIC)	
  

April	
  13th	
  –	
  May	
  18th	
  èPIC	
  Little	
  Caesar’s	
  Pizza	
  Kit	
  Sale	
  	
  

May	
  24th	
  èAwards	
  ceremony	
  for	
  all	
  grades	
  at	
  MS	
  

Field	
  Trips:	
  

May	
  9th	
  =>11th	
  grade	
  field	
  trip	
  to	
  Binghamton	
  University	
  

May	
  12th	
  =>8th	
  grade	
  field	
  trip	
  to	
  Museum	
  of	
  Science	
  and	
  Technology	
  

May	
  14th	
  èTeen	
  Book	
  Fest,	
  Nazareth	
  College	
  Field	
  Trip	
  

 

VII. Executive Session 

Motion by Dunmore, seconded by Hadzic to adjourn to Executive Session in accordance 
with the New York State Open Meeting Law §105, to discuss topics such as personnel 
matters, attorney-client privilege matters, pending litigation, negotiations and other 
such related matters. 
Roll Call: unanimously 

Please Note: The matters discussed will be made public if and when the circumstances 
requiring confidentiality no longer exist; however, it is not presently known when such 
circumstances will exist. 



 

 

VIII. Public Comment on Any Agenda Topic 
 
Board President or designee opens the public comment session on any agenda topic. 
Each person is limited to speak for a period of one (1) minute and will be asked to give 
their full name, spell their last name and provide their address.  
Board President or designee closes the public comment session on any agenda topic. 
 
 

IX. Motion by Ay, seconded by Turnquest, to adjourn the meeting at 10.05 pm. 
Roll Call: unanimously 
 



Utica Academy of Science Charter School 

Board of Trustees 

Regular Meeting 
Minutes 

 
Date : 6/7/2016 
Place : UASCS High School 

I. The regular meeting was called to order at 7.05 pm. The board reserves the right to act on 
any and all agenda items. 
 
Open Public Meeting Act Statement 
This meeting has been publicized in accordance with the requirements of the  
New York State Open Meetings Law (OML) and notification given to all appropriate 
parties. The notice of this meeting was posted on the school website. 

  
 Roll Call: 
 

Name Position Voting Attendance 
Fehmi Damkaci President Yes Present 
Ahmet Ay Vice President  

Board Secretary 
Yes Present 

Muris Hadzic Treasurer Yes Present 
Sherman Dunmore Trustee Yes Absent 
Jawwaad Rasheed Trustee Yes Absent 
Chanel Turnquest Trustee Yes Present 
Murat Baysal Trustee Yes Present 
Tolga Hayali Superintendent No Present 
Nick Bilge Chief Financial Officer No Present 
Mustafa Ersoy UASCS Director No Present 
Ugur Kocak SASCS Director No Present 

 
Others present at the meeting:  
 

II. Approval of Meeting Minutes 
 
Motion to accept the following minutes of the Board of Trustees Meeting (Minutes 
forwarded to Trustees via e-mail.) 
 
Regular Board Meeting of 5/10/2016 
 
Motion by Turnquest, seconded by Ay 
Roll Call: Unanimously 

 
III. Agenda 

1. Approval of new hires 
2. Approval of 2016-2017 Academic Calendar 
3. Approval of 2016-2017 Board Meeting Dates 
4. Approval of Student Uniform Vendor for 2016-2017 School Year 



5. Approval of Budget Revisions 
6. Approval of 2016-2017 Budget  
7. Approval of Line of Credits to Build a Soccer Field 
8. Approval of Superintendent salary 
9. Approval of Student handbook  

Discussion 
1. Financial status and budget 
2. Discussion of SAS&UAS merger 
3. Superintendent’s report 

 
Motion by Ay, seconded by Hadzic, to adopt the agenda as presented. 
Roll Call: Unanimously 
 

IV. �Motion # 160607.1  
RESOLVED, that employee contract renewals and new hiring of teachers and staff listed 
in the attached document is hereby approved. 

 
Moved by Ay, seconded by Turnquest. 

Resolution # 160607.1  was approved unanimously 
 

 

�Motion # 160607.2  
RESOLVED, that 2016-2017 academic calendar is hereby approved. 

 
Moved by Turnquest, seconded by Ay. 

Resolution # 160607.2  was approved unanimously 
 
 

�Motion # 160607.3  
RESOLVED, that 2016-2017 board meeting dates 07/12, 08/9, 09/13, 10/10, 11/8, 12/6, 
01/16, 02/14, 03/14, 04/11, 05/9, 06/6 are hereby approved. 

 
Moved by Ay, seconded by Turnquest. 

Resolution # 160607.3  was approved unanimously 
 

�Motion # 160607.4  
RESOLVED, that 2016-2016 student uniform vendor Just the rights is hereby approved, 
even though it is the highest pricing, board discussed the services and easiness for 
parents and students. Having an actual retail store and having an inventory at the store 
at all times, which is plus for a new students or last minute orders.  
 

SIZE	
   ITEM	
   Cooley	
   Just	
  Right	
  Stuff	
   Spinnaker	
  

Youth	
   Polo	
  Shirt	
   $11	
   $11.95	
   $12	
  



Youth	
   T-­‐Shirt	
   $4	
   $6.05	
   $3.5	
  

Youth	
   Hooded	
  Sweatshirt	
   $11	
   $16	
   $15	
  

Youth	
   Short	
   $7	
   $10.25	
   $8.25	
  

Adult	
   Polo	
  Shirt	
   $11	
   $11.95	
   $13	
  

Adult	
   T-­‐Shirt	
   $4	
   $6.05	
   $3.5	
  

Adult	
   Hooded	
  Sweatshirt	
   $11	
   $16	
   $15	
  

Adult	
   Short	
   $7	
   $10	
   $8.5	
  
 

# Issues Details Spinniker Cooley Right Stuff 

1 

Size 

Parents may not know the 
students' size. If it is online 
ordered, this become an 
serious issue. 

The school needs 
to have inventory 

They need to order 
correct size 

No problem to 
change it 

2 Parental 
Issue 

Parents may not pay 
attention to online order 
until the school starts. 

Retail stores for 
3-4 weeks 
beginning of the 
year. 

No retail store. At least 
3 days to return for the 
beginning of the school 
year 

Inventory in the 
show room 

3 
Cash Pay 

Parents may not have 
options of credit card. 

Cash is OK  Cash is not an option Cash or credit is 
OK at the 
showroom 

4 Credit 
Card 

Can parents pay by credit 
card 

Credit Card is OK Online payment only Cash or credit is 
OK at the 
showroom 

5 Online 
Payment 

We need a platform to 
collect online money 

Online platform Online platform Online platform 

6 Online 
Order 

We need a platform to 
collect online orders 

Online platform Online platform Online platform 

7 Last 
Minute 
Order 

Parents will come here 
throughout the year. We 
need to provide them the 
materials 

It is going to be 
pricy but in a few 
days. 

5-10 days If in stock, the 
same day... if not 
a few days 

8 
Inventory 

How are we going to sel out 
our inventory 

Put them in retial 
store w/ handlign 
fee of $3 

Put them in their online 
store for sale 

Put them in their 
online store for 
sale 

9 Amount 
How many we need from 
each piece? 

1000 items 1000 items 1000 items 

10 

Fabric 

We need to provide all of 
them product number to get 
the quote for the same 
materials 

Product numbers 
are the same 

Product numbers are 
the same 

Product numbers 
are the same 

 
 

Moved by Ay, seconded by Turnquest. 

Resolution # 160607.4  was approved unanimously 
 

�Motion # 160607.5  
RESOLVED, that budget revisions are hereby approved. 



 
Moved by Ay, seconded by Baysal. 

Resolution # 160607.5  was approved unanimously 
 

�Motion # 160607.6  
RESOLVED, that 2016 - 2017 school budget is hereby approved. 

 
Moved by Hadzic, seconded by Ay. 

Resolution # 160607.6  was approved unanimously 
 

�Motion # 160607.7  
RESOLVED, that the use of the existing line of credit for building a soccer field is hereby 
approved,  (Tabled  for future discussion) 
Moved by Choose an item., seconded by Choose an item.. 

Resolution # 160607.7  was Choose an item. 
 

�Motion # 160607.8  
RESOLVED, that Superintendent Dr. Hayali’s salary gets 9% increase (due there was no 
increase last three years) and three year contract and 3.75% annual increase and 3 weeks 
vacation and reimbursed for unused vacation/sick/personal days and 33% portion from 
UASCS is hereby approved. 

 
Moved by Turnquest, seconded by Baysal . 

Resolution # 160607.8  was approved unanimously 
 

�Motion #160607.9 
RESOLVED, that the student handbook is hereby approved. 

 
Moved by Ay, seconded by Hadzic. 
Resolution # 160607.9 was approved unanimously 

 

V. Discussion Items 
 
1. Financial status and budget: Budget revision and new budget for 2016-17 is presented. The 

budget for next year will still be a tight budget.  
2. Discussion of SAS&UAS merger; Merging two entities under one entity has been discussed 

under the feedback received from charter office of NYSED. The board members are agreed to 
submit for a merger application before the deadline. Merger will allow the schools to be 
merged under a newly named entity, such as SANY for branding, yet allow the schools keep 
their individual names, such as Utica academy of Syracuse academy. Also, one board meeting 
can be held for both schools, which result in increasing efficiency.  

 
 

 



VI. Superintendent’s Report 
School Dean Reports 

 

School:	
  Utica	
  Academy	
  of	
  Science	
  Charter	
  School	
   

Month:	
   June	
  	
   Year:	
  2016 

Total	
  Current	
  Enrollment 334 

Female 152 

Male 182 

Demographics  

White	
   181	
  –	
  54.2% 

Black 77	
  –	
  23.1%	
  

 
Hispanic 60 - 18% 

Asian 47 – 14.1% 

Others 29 – 8.7% 

Total	
  number	
  of	
  SWD 21 

Total	
  number	
  of	
  LEP 47 ELL scholars and 10 w/ extended time 

Total: 57 
Total	
  number	
  of	
  students	
  eligible	
  for	
  FRLP 33 reduced and 230 free as of 5/9/2016 

Total: 263 
Total	
  Students	
  in	
  Waiting	
  List  

Total	
  Out	
  of	
  School	
  Suspensions High School è1 

Middle School è2 

 

May	
  highlights:	
  

• International	
  Night:	
  Over	
  twenty	
  different	
  culture	
  and	
  country	
  represented	
  3rd	
  Annual	
  UASCS	
  
International	
  Night.	
  Attendees	
  got	
  a	
  chance	
  to	
  taste	
  delicious	
  food	
  from	
  all	
  around	
  the	
  world	
  
and	
  enjoy	
  the	
  traditional	
  dance	
  and	
  music	
  shows.	
  	
  

• Regent	
  Prep	
  sessions	
  held	
  in	
  the	
  high	
  school	
  courses:	
  Teachers	
  organized	
  afterschool	
  and	
  
Saturday	
  school	
  prep	
  sessions	
  in	
  May	
  based	
  on	
  student	
  data	
  on	
  benchmark	
  and	
  STAR	
  test.	
  

School	
  Activities:	
  



June	
  3	
  èPIC	
  Talent	
  Show	
  at	
  HS	
  

June	
  10	
  èPIC	
  Car	
  Wash	
  @	
  MS	
  

June	
  11	
  è6th	
  grade	
  musical	
  performance	
  of	
  Alice’s	
  Adventures	
  at	
  the	
  High	
  School	
  

	
  

Field	
  Trips:	
  

June	
  2	
  è6th	
  grade	
  field	
  trip	
  to	
  Wind	
  Farm	
  in	
  Morrisville,	
  NY	
  and	
  Chittenango	
  State	
  Park	
  	
  

June	
  9	
  è 	
  6th	
  grade	
  field	
  trip	
  to	
  Darien	
  Lake	
  

June	
  10	
  	
  è 	
  7th	
  grade	
  field	
  trip	
  to	
  New	
  Hartford	
  Theater	
  

June	
  16	
  	
  è 	
  6th	
  grade	
  field	
  trip	
  to	
  Herkimer	
  Diamond	
  Mines	
  	
  

June	
  23	
  	
  è 	
  6th&	
  7th	
  grade	
  field	
  trip	
  to	
  the	
  Towpath	
  Feeder	
  Canal	
  in	
  Boonville,	
  NY	
  	
  

June	
  23	
  è	
  6th	
  &	
  7th	
  grade	
  field	
  trip	
  to	
  the	
  Six	
  Flags,	
  Lake	
  George,	
  NY	
  

June	
  23	
  è	
  6th	
  &	
  7th	
  grade	
  field	
  trip	
  to	
  Water	
  Safari	
  

 
 

VII. Executive Session 

Motion by Ay, seconded by Turnquest to adjourn to Executive Session in accordance 
with the New York State Open Meeting Law §105, to discuss topics such as personnel 
matters, attorney-client privilege matters, pending litigation, negotiations and other 
such related matters. 
Roll Call: approved unanimously 

Please Note: The matters discussed will be made public if and when the circumstances 
requiring confidentiality no longer exist; however, it is not presently known when such 
circumstances will exist. 

 

VIII. Reconvene Public Session 
Motion by Ay, seconded by Hadzic, to exit the executive session.  
Roll Call: approved unanimously 

 

IX. Public Comment on Agenda Topics 
 
Board President or designee opens the public comment session on agenda topics. 
Each person is limited to speak for a period of one (1) minute and will be asked to give 
their full name, spell their last name and provide their address.  
Board President or designee closes the public comment session on agenda topic. 



 
 

X. Motion by Ay, seconded by Turnquest, to adjourn the meeting at 9.20 pm. 
Roll Call: approved unanimously 
 



UTICA ACADEMY OF SCIENCE ENROLLMENT AND OUTREACH EFFORTS SUMMARY 
 

1. City-wide mailing - all potential students in grade 5-11 have received information 
package from UASCS in February 2016 
 

2. Show case open house event - UASCS organized show case open house on Saturday 
March 19, 2016 with the participation of all staff. 

 
3. Outreach material in different languages - UASCS has translated versions of all fliers 

and enrollment forms in Spanish, and Burmese languages  
 

4. Visiting organization and community centers in Utica - Below are examples of some 
of the outreach efforts in 2015-16  

 

Midtown Utica Community, Contact: Chris 
Sunderland: 315-796-5440 

Spoke to ELL parents & students at the 
Midtown Utica Community on January 19, 
2016. HG 

Karen New Year Event at Jorgensen Event 
Center  
Mohawk Valley Community College (MVCC)  
1101 Sherman Drive  
Utica, NY 13501  

Visited on January 23, 2016, 11:00am - 
3:00pm and literature dropped reaching ou to 
ESL students. HG 

Learning Disability Association of the Mohawk 
Valley Information/Support Group, 409 Columbia 
Street, Utica, NY 13502 Contact Person- Evelyn 
Clark 315-797-1253 ext 2965 -  

Visited on February 19, 2016 and 
literature dropped specifically reaching out to 
SWD (SPED ) students. VB 

Mohawk Valley Resource Center for Refugees, 
309 Genesee Street, Utica, NY 13501 Contact 
Person – Pavel Brutsky (315)738-1083 ext 123  

Visited on Feb 19 and literature dropped 
reaching out to ESL students. VB Tried calling 
Refugee Center Mr. Brutsky is not in. VB 
3/18/2016 Called his cell phone number and 
found out that he is on a medical leave for a 
month. He will go back to his workplace on 
Monday and assign one of his collegians’ to 
help refugee students complete UAS 
application. VB 3/18/2016 

On Point is an access program geared to get 
students into 
college. Address: 500 Plant Street, Utica, NY 
13502 Contact 
Person -  Ms. Ushona McLean-315 790-5588  

Visited on Feb 19, 2016 and UAS literature 
was dropped. VB Follow up call to Ms. McLean 
in regards to applications & deadline. VB 
3/18/2016 
 

United Ways  is  a social and welfare service. 
Address: 201 Lafayette Street, Utica, NY 13502 
Contact Person -  Ms. Brenda 
Episcopo  (315) 733-4691  

Visited on Feb 19, 2016 and UAS literature 
was dropped. VB 
 

Boys and Girls Club –755 Lansing Street, Utica, 
NY 13501 Contact Person - Mr. Walter Peak 
(315) 329-1611  

Visited on Feb 19, 2016 and UAS literature 
was dropped. VB Called (spk w/ Mr. Peak) he 
stated that he gave few applications out. He 
will remind parents that application deadline is 
April 1, 2016. VB 3/18/2016 
 

Catholic Charities of Oneida & Madison County –
1408 Genesee Street, Utica, NY 13501 Contact 
Person -  Denise Cavanaugh (315) 724-2158 

Visited on Feb 19, 2016 and UAS literature 
was dropped. VB 



 

Salvation Army –14 Clinton Place, Utica, NY 
13502 -Contact Person - Lieutenant Simone 
Harrington   

 

Visited on Feb 19, 2016 and UAS literature 
was dropped. VB 
 

YMCA of the Mohawk Valley –1000 Cornelia 
Street, Utica, NY 13502 -Contact Person – Ms. 
Gabrielle Sackett  (315) 732-2159 

Visited on Feb 19, 2016 and UAS literature 
was dropped. VB 
 

Utica Public Library –303 Genesee Street, Utica, 
NY 13501 -Contact Person – Ms. Melissa 
Lopez  (315) 735-2279 ext  14  

Visited on Feb 19, 2016 and UAS literature 
was dropped. VB 
 

Thea Bowmans House is a social and welfare 
service. Address: 309 Genesee Street,  #4, 
Utica, NY 13501 -Contact Person – Ms. Janice 
Gilberty  (315) 735-6995 

Visited on Feb 19, 2016 and UAS literature 
was dropped. VB 
 

Utica College Young Scholars Office, 1600 
Burrstone Road, Utica, NY 13502 -Contact 
Person – Ms. Sarah Edmunds  (315) 792-3237 

Visited on Feb 19, 2016 and UAS literature 
was dropped. HG 
 

Barnes & Noble Booksellers, 4811 Commercial 
Drive, New Hartford, NY 13413  -Contact Person 
– Norma Jean Burns  (315) 768-1075 

Visited on Feb 19, 2016 and UAS literature 
was dropped. HG 
 

Utica Children’s Museum, 311 Main Street, Utica, 
NY 13501  -Contact Person – Jessica Bickford-
Manson  (315) 724-6129 

Visited on Feb 19, 2016 and UAS literature 
was dropped. HG 
 

International Grocery Europa Market, 1024 
Webster Ave, Utica, NY 13501-Contact Person; 
Mrs. Libic  

Visited on Feb 20, 2016 and UAS literature 
was dropped. VB 
 

Parkway Center (Boys & Girls Club) -220 
Memorial Parkway, Utica, NY 13501-Contact 
Person: Walter Peak (315)724-2524 or (315)329-
1611 

Visited on Feb 22, 2016 and UAS literature 
was dropped. VB Called (spk w/ Mr. Peak) he 
stated that he gave few applications out. He 
still has some. He will remind parents that 
application deadline is April 1, 2016. VB 
3/18/2016 
 

Compass Interpreters 309 Genesee St. (Park 
Ave. entrance), Utica, NY 13501 Contact Person: 
Jessica Hernandez 
phone: (315) 749.7080 
fax: (315) 624.9914 

Spoke w/ Ms. Hernandez during the open 
house at the high school and gave her UAS 
literature to reach out to Spanish Community 
in Utica. VB 3/19/2016  
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Entry	12	Teacher	and	Administrator	Attrition
Last	updated:	07/23/2016

Report	changes	in	teacher	and	administrator	staffing.

Page	1

Instructions	for	completing	the	Teacher	and	Administrator	Attrition	Tables
The	following	tables	reflect	formatting	in	the	online	portal	required	for	Regents
authorized	charter	schools.		Schools	should	provide,	for	teachers	and
administrators	only,	the	full	time	equivalent	(FTE)	of	staff	on	June	30,	2015;	the
FTE	for	added	staff	from	July	1,	2015	through	June	30,	2016;	and	the	FTE	for	any
departed	staff	from	July	1,	2015	through	June	30,	2016	using	the	two	tables
provided.

2015-16	Teacher	Attrition	Table

FTE	Teachers	on
June	30,	2015

FTE	Teachers
Departed
7/1/15	–
6/30/16

FTE	Teachers
Filling	Vacant
Positions	7/1/15
–	6/30/16

FTE	Teachers
Added	in	New
Positions
7/1/15-6/30/16

FTE	of	Teachers
on	June	30,
2016

18 13 19 6 24

2015-16	Administrator	Position	Attrition	Table

FTE
Administrative
Positions	on
June	30,	2015

FTE
Administrators
Departed
7/1/15	–
6/30/16

FTE
Administrators
Filling	Vacant
Positions	7/1/15
–	6/30/16

FTE
Administrators
Added	in	New
Positions
7/1/15-6/30/16

FTE
Administrative
Positions	on
June	30,	2016

2.33 1 1 1 3.33

Thank	you
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Entry	13	Uncertified	Teachers
Last	updated:	07/23/2016

Page	1

The	table	below	is	reflective	of	the	information	collected	through	the	online
portal	for	compliance	with	New	York	State	Education	Law	2854(3)(a-1)	for
teaching	staff	qualifications.	Enter	the	relevant	full	time	equivalent	(FTE)	count
of	teachers	in	each	column.		For	example,	a	school	with	20	full	time	teachers	and
5	half	time	teachers	would	have	an	FTE	count	of	22.5.	If	more	than	one	column
applies	to	a	particular	teacher,	please	select	one	column	for	the	FTE	count.

Staff	Qualifications	(June	30,	2016)	
Note:	Columns	should	sum	to	the	FTE	count	of	Teachers	on	June	30,	2016,	and	each
teacher	should	be	in	only	one	column.

1.	FTE	Count	of	Uncertified	Teachers	(6-30-15)

2.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teacher	with	at	least
three	years	of	elementary,	middle	or	secondary
classroom	teaching	experience	(6-30-15)

3

3.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	who	are	tenured
or	tenure	track	college	faculty	(6-30-15)

4.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with	two	years
of	Teach	for	America	experience	(6-30-15)

5.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with	exceptional
business,	professional,	artistic,	athletic,	or	military
experience	(6-30-15)

6.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	who	do	not	fit
into	any	of	the	prior	four	categories 2

Total 5.0

Thank	you.



*Each arrow indicates the reporting relationship. The arrow points to each staff’s supervisor. Supervisors will be held accountable by the person they report to for the 
performance of all of their direct reports. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BoT

SUPERINTENDENT

ORGANIZATION CHART* 

College Advisor 

School Counselor 

Administrative 
Assistant

Teachers 

Nurse 

Dean of Students  Security 

Director / High School 
Dean    Middle School Dean  

Dean of Students  Security 

Teachers 

School Counselor 

Administrative 
Assistant

Nurse 

Asst. Supt. for Finance Asst. Supt. for Accountability 



0 Aug 17-19 Summer Orien. -New Teachers 19 Jan 1 New Year's Day (No School)
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Jan 4 Classes Resume

1 1 2 Jan 18 MLK Day (No School)

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 Jan 4 -15 Benchmark II Week

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 Aug 20 6th & 7th at 5:30pm 10 11 12 13 15 15 16 Jan 12/13 ELA/Math-Benchmark II

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 Aug 21 8th&HS at 5:30pm 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 Jan 22 End of 2nd Quarter

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 Jan 26-29 Regents Exams - Full Day for MS

30 31 31

20 15
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sep 4 First Day of School Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Feb 5 Parent Teach. Conf. Day (No Student)

1 2 3 4 5 Sep 7 Labor Day (No School) 1 2 3 4 5 6 Feb 15-19 Winter Break (No School)

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 7 8 9 10 11 12 13
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 Sep 18 Picture Day 14 15 16 17 18 19 20
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 Sep 26 Back to School BBQ 1-3:30pm 21 22 23 24 25 26 27
27 28 29 30 28 29

20 Oct 2 Five-week progress report card 21 Mar 1- 3 ELA- Full Scale Benchmark III
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Oct 12 Columbus Day (No School) Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat March 4 Five Week Report Card

1 2 3 Oct 14 PSAT -11th graders 1 2 3 4 5 Mar 9-11 Math- Full Scale Benchmark III

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Oct 19 - 30 Benchmark I Weeks 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 Mar 14-24 Benchmark III Weeks

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 Oct 22 Superintendent Day (No School) 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 Mar 19 UAS Sci Fair & Show case 10 - 2pm

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 Oct 27/28 ELA/Math - Benchmark I 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 Mar 25 Good Friday (No School)

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 Oct 30  Parent Teach Conf Day  (No Students) 27 28 29 30 31 Mar 28 Recess (No School)

17 Nov 6 End of 1st Quarter 16 Apr 5-7 ELA State Exam (6-8)
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Nov 11 Veterans Day (No School) Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Apr 8 End of 3rd Quarter

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 Nov 18 - Photo Absentee Day 1 2 Apr 13-15 Math State Exam (6-8)

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 Nov 25-27 Thanksgiving Break (No School) 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 Apr  25-29 Spring Break (No School)

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 10 11 12 13 14 15 16
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 17 18 19 20 21 22 23
29 30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

17 20 May 13 Taste of UAS - Int.Food Festival
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Dec 11 Five Week Progress Report Card Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat May 17 Superintendent Day (No School)

1 2 3 4 5 Dec 23 Half Day School - Holiday Concert 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 May 19 Annual Honor Roll Dinner

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 Dec 24 - 31 Winter Break (No School) 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 May 20 Five Week Report Card
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 May 25 Science State Exam (8)

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 May 27 Recess (No School)

27 28 29 30 31 29 30 31 May 30 Memorial Day (No School)

UTICA ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL 2015-16 ACADEMIC CALENDAR (185 DAYS)
August January

Aug 24 -Sep 1 Summer Orien. -All Teachers

September Sep 2-3 Superintendent  Days (No Student) February

Sep 8-11 STAR Test I (6-11th in Math /ELA)

October March

November April

December Dec 7-10 STAR Tests II (6-11 in Math /ELA) May



18 June 1 CC Algebra II Exams
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat June 6 Science State Written Exam (8)

1 2 3 4 June 1- 17 Benchmark IV Weeks

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 June 7/8 ELA/Math - Benchmark IV

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 June 14-22 Regent Exams

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 June 24 Last Day of School

26 27 28 29 30

Contingency Days
If an emergency situation forces district to close for more than five days, school will be in
session beginning April 29, 28, 27, 26 each day beyond five and in that order.

June

Half Day
School Closed
End of Quarter
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